FRESNOYERANT
W HOUSING =555

Boards of Commissioners Meeting
June 23, 2020

www.fresnohousing.org 1331 Fulton Mall, Fresno, California 93721 (559) 443-8400 TTY (800) 735-2929

1




FRESNOVERANT
foosneHOUSING 5557

AGEN DA Meeting of the Boards of Commissioners of Fresno

Housing
O (559) 443-8400

F (559) 445-8981
5:00pm -June 23, 2020 - Per Executive Order N-25-20, which allows local

1331 Fulton Street . . . . .
and state legislative bodies to hold meetings via teleconference and to make

Fresno, California 93721
TTY (800) 735-2929 meetings accessible electronically,” this Board Meeting will be held via

conference call and can be accessed as follows:

To join via Zoom: https://bit.ly/FHBoard06232020

To join via teleconference, call: (669) 900-6833. Meeting ID: 942 8189 4525,
Password: 136396.

www.fresnohousing.org

Interested parties wishing to address the Boards of Commissioners regarding
this meeting’s Agenda Items, and/or regarding topics not on the agenda but
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards of Commissioners, are asked
to complete a “Request to Speak” card which may be obtained from the Board
Secretary (Tiffany Mangum) at 4:45 p.m. You will be called to speak under
Agenda Item 3, Public Comment. Please email your request to speak to

executiveoffice@fresnohousing.org.

The meeting room is accessible to the physically disabled, and the services of a
translator can be made available. Requests for additional accommodations for
the disabled, signers, assistive listening devices, or translators should be made
at least one (1) full business day prior to the meeting. Please call the Board
Secretary at (559) 443-8475, TTY 800-735-2929.

S5pm



PAGE #

. Call to Order and Roll Call

. Approval of agenda as posted (or amended)

The Boards of Commissioners may add an item to this agenda if, upon a
two-thirds vote, the Boards of Commissioners find that there is a need for
immediate action on the matter and the need came to the attention to the
Authority after the posting of this agenda.

. Public Comment

This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Boards
of Commissioners on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of
the Boards of Commissioners that is not listed on the Agenda. At the start
of your presentation, please state your name, address and/or the topic you
wish to speak on that is not on the agenda. Presentations are limited to a
total of three (3) minutes per speaker.

. Potential Conflicts of Interest — Any Commissioner who has a potential
conflict of interest may now identify the item and recuse themselves from
discussing and voting on the matter. (Gov. Code section 87105)

Consent Agenda

All Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine action items and
will be enacted in one motion unless pulled by any member of the Boards
of Commissions or the public. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless requested, in which event the item will be removed the
Consent Agenda and considered following approval of the Consent
Agenda.

a. Consideration of the Minutes of May 26, 2020

b. Consideration of Contract for Replacement of Stairs at
Maldonado Plaza

c. Consideration of Acceptance of Award of Tax Credit
Allocation — Barstow Commons

d. Consideration of the Omnibus Resolutions - Chinatown

e. Consideration of the Amendment to the No Place Like
Home (NPLH) Resolution — The Villages at Paragon

Informational
a. Update on Intergovernmental Agreement with the Fresno
Police Department
b. Overview of 2019 Mixed Finance Financial Results
c. Real Estate Development Pipeline Overview

Action
a. Consideration of Funding Application Submission —
Mendota Farm Labor
b. Consideration of Funding Application Submission —
Blackstone and Simpson
c. County: Consideration of the Amended Bylaws
d. City: Consideration of the Amended Bylaws

13

17
50

55

57
75

76

86

97



PAGE #

8. Commissioners’ Report
9. Executive Director’s Report

10. Closed Session
a. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.5(b))
Property: N. Chestnut Avenue/E. Alluvial Avenue,
Fresno, CA 93720 (APN: 404-071-50)
Agency negotiator: Preston Prince
Negotiating parties: Susan Brosi, Louis Brosi, Jr., and
Housing Authority of the City of Fresno
Under negotiation: Price and Terms

11. Report on Closed Session Items

12. Action
a. Consideration Purchase and Sale Agreement — Alluvial
and Chestnut Avenues

13. Adjournment

127



Minutes of the Joint Meeting

Of the Boards of Commissioners of the

HOUSING AUTHORITIES OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF FRESNO

Tuesday, May 26, 2020
5:00 P.M.

The Boards of Commissioners of the Housing Authorities of the City and County of Fresno
met in a regular session on Tuesday, May 26, 2020, via teleconference.

1. The regular meeting was called to order at 5:01 p.m. by Board Chair, Commissioner Jones, of
the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno. Roll call was
taken and the Commissioners present and absent were as follows:

PRESENT: Adrian Jones, Chair
Caine Christensen, Vice Chair

Sharon Williams
Ruby Yanez

Stacy Vaillancourt
Terra Brusseau

ABSENT: None.

The regular meeting was called to order at 5:01 p.m. by Board Chair, Commissioner Sablan,
of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of Fresno County. Roll call was taken
and the Commissioners present and absent were as follows:

PRESENT: Stacy Sablan, Chair
Mary G. Castro, Vice Chair
Cary Catalano
Joey Fuentes
Nikki Henry

ABSENT: Valori Gallaher

Also, in attendance were the following: Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director, and Ken

Price, Baker Manock and Jensen -General Counsel.



Page |2

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED (OR AMENDED)

COUNTY MOTION: Commissioner Henry moved, seconded by Commissioner Castro, to
approve the agenda as posted.

MOTION PASSED: 5-0

CITY MOTION: Commissioner Yanez moved, seconded by Commissioner Williams, to
approve the agenda as posted.

MOTION PASSED: 6-0

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment at this time.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

There were no potential conflicts of interest presented at this time.

CONSENT AGENDA
a. Consideration of the Minutes of April 28, 2020
b. Consideration of the Award of the Architectural Contract — Barstow Commons

CITY MOTION: Commissioner Vaillancourt moved, seconded by Commissioner
Christensen to approve the consent agenda.

MOTION PASSED: 6-0

COUNTY MOTION: Commissioner Catalano moved, seconded by Commissioner Fuentesto
approve the consent agenda.

MOTION PASSED: 5-0

INFORMATIONAL

a. Real Estate Development Pipeline Overview

Michael Duarte, Director of Planning and Community Development, presented on this item.

Joint Meeting
Action Minutes: 05.26.2020

Adopted:



Page |3

7. BOARD DISCUSSION

a. Board Bylaws

Ken Price, General Counsel, presented on this item.

8. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT

Commissioner Sablan thanked Tiffany Mangum, Executive Office Manager, and the IT
Department for working with the Commissioners on communications and technology. She
noted that the technology has been getting a lot better and easier to navigate. She thanked staff
for the social media posts and for the messaging from the Communications department. She
stated that Fresno Housing has been able to demonstrate the diligent work it has done during
this time of transition.

9. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

- Working on several potential reopening scenarios for the Agency Operations.
- Chair Jones was reappointed for 4 years to the City’s Board.
- Promotions:
o Aysha Hills, Human Resources Manager (promoted from Senior Human Resources
Analyst)
o Lucille Kirchman, Accounting Manager (promoted from Senior Accountant)

o)

Arlene Wood, Accounting Manager (promoted from Senior Accountant)
o Samuel Zamora, Property Specialist I (promoted from Maintenance Technician)

10. CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Commissioners entered closed session at approximately 6:15 pm.

a. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.5(b))
Property: 8715 N. Chestnut Avenue, Fresno, CA 93720 (APN: 403-532-28); 8681 N.
Chestnut Avenue, Fresno, CA 93720 (APN: 403-532-29)
Agency negotiator: Preston Prince
Negotiating parties: The Well Community Church, Fresno/Madera Youth for Christ, Inc.,
and Housing Authority of the City of Fresno

Joint Meeting
Action Minutes: 05.26.2020
Adopted:



Page |4

Under negotiation: Price and Terms

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

(Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.5(b))

Property: N. Chestnut Avenue/E. Alluvial Avenue, Fresno, CA 93720 (APN: 404-071-
50)

Agency negotiator: Preston Prince

Negotiating parties: Susan Brosi, Louis Brosi, Jr., and Housing Authority of the City of
Fresno

Under negotiation: Price and Terms

The Boards of Commissioners returned to open session at approximately 6:55 pm.

11. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

Ken Price, General Counsel, stated that there was no action to report.

12. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be considered by the Boards of Commissioners for the
Housing Authorities of the City and County of Fresno, the meeting was adjourned at
approximately 6:56 p.m.

Joint Meeting

Preston Prince, Secretary to the Boards of Commissioners

Action Minutes: 05.26.2020

Adopted:



VIBRANT

COMMUNITIES

QUALITY ENGAGED
HOUSING RESIDENTS
# #
TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
Fresno Housing BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 5b
O (559) 443-8400 . . . .
F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Lyric Aguigam
1331 Fulton Street . . . .
Fresno, California 93721 SUBJECT: Consideration of Contract for Replacement of Exterior Stairs at
TTY (800) 735-2929 Maldonado Plaza

Executive Summary

The purpose of this memo is to request approval from the Boards of
Commissioners to award the contract for the demolition and replacement of the
exterior stairs at Maldonado Plaza. In May 2018, the Boards of Commissioners
accepted a grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) for $1,873,070
for various rehabilitation projects at Maldonado, including the proposed
contract for stair demolition and replacement.

An Invitation for Bids (IFB) was pubicly solicited in April, 2020. Soliciation
efforts included publication in the Fresno Bee, Central Valley Builder Exchange,
E-procurement website, public job walks, and direct calls to potential vendors.
The deadline for responses was June 11, 2020 at 4:00pm. The Agency received a
total of two bids from qualified bidders:

1. Beam and Company, Inc: $333,000
2. STW Contractors, Inc: $338,900

Procurement staff determined Beam and Company Inc. to be the top responsive
and responsible bidder, with a proposed starting date of July 2020.

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Boards of Commissioners adopt a resolution authorizing
Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director, and/or his designee, to enter into
contract negotiations and execute the contract for exterior stair demolition and
replacement at Maldonado Plaza with Beam and Company Inc. for $333,000.

Fiscal Impact

The fiscal impact of the contract will be no more than $333,000 per our contract
limits. This amount will be paid by the rehabilitation grant from the USDA.

Background Information

Located at 1779 Thomas Conboy Avenue in Firebaugh, California, the
Maldonado Migrant Center has 64 two- and three-bedroom units. Each year the
property houses migrant farm laborers for nine to twelve months. Maldonado
has a substantial list of rehabilitation needs and staff has been working closely



#
with USDA to address the needed repairs. The scope of repairs funded by the rehabilitation grant has

included HVAC conversion, new roofs, new windows, site foundation repairs, the replacement of exterior

stairs, and a variety of interior finishes.

#



RESOLUTION NO.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THE
EXTERIOR STAIRS AT MALDONADO PLAZA

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno (the “Agency”) has received bids

from qualified general contractors to replace the exterior stairs at Maldonado Plaza; and

WHEREAS, Beam and Company, Inc. was a responsive and responsible bidder who
provided qualifications and prices that are the most advantageous to the Agency, pursuant to

the Agency’s procurement guidelines and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to enter into a contract with Beam and Company Inc. for
demolition and replacement of the exterior stairs for the amount of $333,000; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority of the City of Fresno do hereby authorize the Executive Director/CEQO, or his
designee, to negotiate and execute the contract for the replacement of the exterior stairs at
Maldonado Plaza with Beam and Company, Inc. and execute all documents in connection
therewith.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 23 DAY OF June, 2020. I, the undersigned, herby certify
that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the following vote,

to-wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Boards of Commissioners



RESOLUTION NO.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF EXTERIOR
STAIRS AT MALDONADO PLAZA

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Fresno (the “Agency”) has received

bids from qualified general contractors to replace the exterior stairs at the Maldonado Plaza; and

WHEREAS, Beam and Company, Inc. was a responsive and responsible bidder who
provided qualifications and prices that are the most advantageous to the Agency, pursuant to

the Agency’s procurement guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to enter into a contract with Beam and Company, Inc. for

demolition and replacement of the exterior stairs for the amount of $333,000; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority of the County of Fresno do hereby authorize the Executive Director/CEO, or his
designee, to negotiate and execute the contract for the replacement of the exterior stairs at
Maldonado Plaza with Beam and Company, Inc. and execute all documents in connection
therewith.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 23 DAY OF June, 2020. I, the undersigned, herby certify
that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the following vote,

to-wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Boards of Commissioners



FRESNOYEUAL
BeHOUSING
AUTHORITY&2

# #

Bo A R D TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
M E M o Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020

FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 5¢
O (559) 443-8400 . .
F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Brandon Gonzalez
1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: Approval to Accept Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Award for
Fresno, California 93721 Barstow Commons
TTY (800) 735-2929 "
www.fresnohousing.org

Executive Summary

The purpose of this Board memo is to ask the Boards of Commissioners for
approval to accept the recently awarded Low Income Housing Tax Credits
(LIHTC) for the Barstow Commons property.

At the January 22, 2019 Board meeting the Board authorized entering into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Fresno Department of
Behavioral Health, (DBH) to collaborate on the development of permanent
supportive housing for Fresno County residents and allocate $2,183,000 in non-
competitive NPLH funds, as well as $6,168,706 in Special Needs Housing
Program funds to the Fresno Housing Authority (FH) for the development of
permanent supportive housing. The County of Fresno Department of Behavioral
Heatlh (DBH) served as the lead applicant and service provider, and FH’s role is
the development sponsor and project owner/borrower. Barstow Commons
received an award of No Place Like Home (NPLH) housing funds on June 14,
2019.

On June 25, 2019, the Board of Commissioners adopted a resolution approving
the submission of a 9% LIHTC application for Barstow Commons, located at 130
W. Barstow Avenue, Fresno, California, to the California Tax Credit Allocation
Committee (CTCAC) for the purpose of securing new financing for the project.
The LIHTC program provides incentives for the utilization of private equity in
the development of affordable housing. CTCAC administers the federal and
state LIHTC programs in California.

On March 9, 2020 the Fresno Housing Authority (FH) submitted a funding
application for Barstow Commons to CTCAC. On June 17, 2020, CTCAC made
its formal awards for the current round of 9% LIHTCs and issued a preliminary
reservation letter for the Barstow Commons project. FH will have approximately
20 days from the preliminary reservation letter to accept the award and
concurrently commit to start construction within 180 to 194 days from award.
The project will serve families and individuals with income levels ranging at or
below 20%-60% of the Fresno County area median income (AMI).

13



Recommendation

It is recommended that the Boards of Commissioners accept the 9% Low-Income Housing Tax Credits
award from the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee for Barstow Commons totaling $18,945,940 in
Federal tax credits and $17,997 in State of California tax credits and further authorize Preston Prince,
CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive Director, and/or their designee to execute
documents on behalf of the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno in connection with the approved
actions.

Fiscal Impact

A nonrefundable Allocation Fee estimated at $76,000 and a refundable Performance Deposit estimated at
$76,000 will be required at the time of reservation acceptance. These costs will be allocated to the approved
pre-development budget for the project.

Background Information

Barstow Commons, located at 130 W. Barstow Ave, Fresno, CA (APN: 416-040-09), is a proposed 42-unit
new construction project in Fresno, CA that will include twenty (20) one-bedroom units, fourteen (14) two-
bedroom units, seven (7) three-bedroom units, and one (1) three-bedroom manager unit. The households
will have access to common area facilities in an on-site community building with approximately 4,038 net
square feet where resident services will be offered free of charge. The site is intended to serve a combination
of multi-family residential and permanent supportive housing for tenants in partnership with Fresno
County Department of Behavioral Health. Residents of Barstow Commons will have access to interior
community spaces, outdoor play spaces for children, and picnic-relaxation areas. The community room at
Barstow Commons will accommodate services for families and children, community events, and property
management-related functions. The design of the project includes ideas, designs and discussions around
the concept of “Trauma Informed Design”. The property will have two laundry facilities on-site and is
being designed to Green Building standards. Emphasis will be placed on efficient mechanical systems
(HVAC, water heating) and efficient shell measures (light color stucco, metal roofing/single-ply TPO). The
site will also use drought resistant landscaping.

Past Board Actions
— January 22, 2019: approved to enter into an assignment of real estate purchase contract
- January 22, 2019: approved the submission of an application to the No Place Like Home program
— June 25, 2019: approved the allocation of up to twenty-five (20) project based vouchers
—  June 25, 2019: authorized the submission of a 9% LIHTC application and other funding applications
- October 22, 2019: approved HRFC funding commitment for acquisition of real property
- October 22, 2019: approved acquisition of property located at 130 W. Barstow, Fresno, CA 93704
— April 28, 2020: approved award of General Contractor/Construction Manager (GCCM) contract
- May 26, 2020: approved award of Architectural Services contract



RESOLUTION NO.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF LOW-INCOME HOUSING TAX
CREDITS AWARDED TO THE BARSTOW COMMONS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California (the “Agency”)
seeks to expand the availability of affordable rental housing and homeownership opportunities

to low income persons within Fresno County; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to support housing opportunities for low and moderate

income households within a variety of neighborhoods; and

WHEREAS, HACF has secured an award of funding from the State Housing and
Community Development Department (HCD) No Place Like Home Program (NPLH) for the
new construction of the Barstow Commons permanent supportive housing component that will

serve households with incomes at or below 20-60% of the Area Median Income; and,

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019 the Board of Commissioners adopted a resolution
approving the submission of a 9% Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) application for
Barstow Commons project (130 W. Barstow Avenue, Fresno, CA) to the California Tax Credit

Allocation Committee; and

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020 the Agency submitted a funding application to the
California Tax Credit Allocation Committee for LIHTCs for construction of the Barstow

Commons project; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2020, Barstow Commons received a Preliminary Reservation
Letter for 9% LIHTCs from the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee and the Agency

desires to accept the award; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority of the City of Fresno, California do hereby approve the acceptance of the award from
the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee for 9% Low-Income Housing Tax Credits for
Barstow Commons and authorize Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan,
Deputy Executive Director, and/or their designee to negotiate and execute all related documents

therein.



PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 23+ DAY OF JUNE, 2020. I, the undersigned, hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the

following vote, to-wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Boards of Commissioners

16



FRESNOYEUAL
BeHOUSING
AUTHORITY&2

B 0 A RD TO: Board of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020

Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
M E M O FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 5d
0 (559) 443-8400 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Sheila Scheitrum

F (559) 445-8981 ) ) )
SUBJECT: The Monarch @ Chinatown — Closing Omnibus Development

Financing Resolution
1331 Fulton Street & ancing Resolutio

Fresno, California 93721
TTY (800) 735-2929

. Executive Summary
www.fresnohousing.org

The purpose of this memo is to request authorization from the Boards of
Commissioners for the required actions to facilitate the financial closing of The
Monarch @ Chinatown (fka Doragon @ Chinatown) development. The Monarch
@ Chinatown Housing Development (the “Project”) site consists of two vacant
parcels located on the Northwest corner of Mariposa and F Streets on
approximately 0.60 acres in Fresno, CA. The proposed development is a 4-story,
mixed-use development with commercial/retail space on the ground floor, and
57 units of affordable workforce housing above.

On October 10, 2019, the Fresno City Council unanimously approved a TCC Sub-
Recipient Agreement for $10,807,319 for the Chinatown Housing Development
and a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Fresno and
Fresno Housing totaling $977,902. On the same date, the City of Fresno
unanimously approved a HOME Agreement for $397,118 for the Project.

In addition to TCC and HOME funds, other committed public funding sources
include the Infill Infrastructure Grant program (IIG), California Housing Finance
Agency (CalHFA) subordinate and permanent financing, and energy efficiency
grants. On December 19, 2017, the Board of Commissioners adopted resolutions
approving the submission of a 4% Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)
application for The Monarch @ Chinatown project to the California Tax Credit
Allocation Committee (CTCAC) for purposes of constructing 57 new residential
units. The application was successful and in February 2020, CTCAC formally
awarded a preliminary reservation for The Monarch @ Chinatown development.

The Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California (the “Authority”), is the
sole member of Doragon @ Chinatown AGP, LLC, a California limited liability
company, the administrative general partner (the “Administrative General
Partner”) of the single purpose ownership entity (Doragon @ Chinatown, LP).
Silvercrest, Inc., an instrumentality of the Authority, is the managing general
partner of the Partnership (see Exhibit A).

17



Approval to develop the Project requires that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the
City of Fresno, California adopt a resolution authorizing the following actions:

1. Authorize a Capital Funds loan commitment of up to $950,000 to the Project.
Authorize actions for the financing, development and operation of the Project.
Authorization of Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive
Director, and/or their designee to execute documents on behalf of the Housing Authority of the
City of Fresno, California in the name of the Administrative General Partner (AGP) or the
Partnership.

4. Provide for other matters related thereto.

Staff is recommending that the Board adopt the attached resolutions, drafted by our affordable housing
finance counsel, Ballard Spahr LLP, and as required by our equity and lending partners, in order to finalize
the closing of the Project on or about July 30, 2020.

A resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of documents, the admission of certain partners to
Doragon @ Chinatown, LP (“Partnership”), and the execution of such documents to implement project
financing by the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California, on its own behalf and in the capacity
as sole member of the Doragon @ Chinatown AGP, LLC, the Administrative General Partner of the
partnership, in connection with the financing, development and operation of The Monarch @ Chinatown
development, and providing for other matters related thereto.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Fresno Housing Authority adopt the attached
resolution, authorizing the execution and delivery of documents in the name of the Administrative General
Partner and in the name of the Partnership, in connection with the financing, development and operation
of the Project, authorizing the lending and the borrowing of money, and providing for other matters related
thereto.

Fiscal Impact

Total construction costs amount to $33,942,536

Table 1: Construction Sources of Finance

Source Amount Description

Construction Loan $ 18,284,455 The Partnership has received a commitment for a
construction loan from Wells Fargo. The loan has a 25
month term at 5.550% interest rate.

Fresno HA Loan (IIG $ 1,160,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for a IIG loan
Grant) from HCD. The loan has a 55 year term at 0% interest rate.

City of Fresno HOME $ 397,118 The Partnership has received a commitment for HOME
Funds from the City of Fresno. The loan has a 30 year term
at 0% interest rate.

18



Source Amount Description

Fresno HA Loan (TCC $ 5,005,489 The Partnership has received a commitment for TCC

Housing) Funds from the State of California — Strategic Growth
Council.

Fresno HA Loan (TCC $ 2,800,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for TCC

Infrastructure) Funds to be used for infrastructure costs from the State of
California — Strategic Growth Council.

Fresno HA Loan $ 850,876 The Partnership has received a commitment funding for

(EPRI/Solar Grant) energy and solar grants.

Deferred Developer Fee |$ 661,201

Fresno Housing Capital | $ 950,000 This residual receipts loan has a 55 year term at 4.00%

Loan interest rate

Accrued/Deferred Interest | $ 148,193 This is accrued/deferred interest on the loans

Costs Deferred until Perm |$ 1,462,304 These costs are not due until construction is complete, and

Financing loan converts to a permanent loan structure.

Equity Contribution $ 2,222,799 Equity contribution at financial closing and construction
start.

GP Contribution $ 100 Equity contribution from the Housing Authority and
Silvercrest, Inc. at closing.

Total permanent sources of finance amount to $33,942,536

Table 2: Permanent Sources of Finance

Source Amount Description

CalHFA Perm Loan |$ 1,935,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for a perm loan from
CalHFA. The loan has a 35 year term at 5.1% interest rate.

Fresno HA Loan (IIG |$ 1,160,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for a IIG loan from

Grant) HCD. The loan has a 55 year term at 0% interest rate.

City of Fresno $ 397,118 The Partnership has received a commitment for HOME Funds

HOME from the City of Fresno. The loan has a 30 year term at 0% interest
rate.

Fresno HA Loan $ 8,007,319 The Partnership has received a commitment for TCC Funds from

(TCC Housing) the State of California — Strategic Growth Council.

Fresno HA Loan $ 2,800,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for TCC Funds to be

(TCC Infrastructure) used for infrastructure costs from the State of California — Strategic
Growth Council.

CalHFA Subordinate | $ 775,000 The Partnership has received a commitment for a soft loan from

Loan CalHFA. The loan has a 55 year term at 1.788% interest rate.




Source Amount Description

Accrued/Deferred $ 148,193 This is accrued/deferred interest on the loans

Interest

Fresno HA Loan $ 850,876 The Partnership has received a commitment funding for energy
(EPRI/Solar Grant) and solar grants.

Deferred Developer |$ 661,201

Fee

Fresno Housing $ 950,000 This residual receipts loan has a 55 year term at 4.00% interest rate
Capital Loan

General Partner $ 1,484,119

Contribution

(Developer Fee)

Equity Contribution

$ 14,773,610

GP Contribution

$ 100

Equity contribution from the Housing Authority and Silvercrest,
Inc. at closing.

Background Information

The Chinatown housing development site consists of two vacant parcels located on the northwest corner

of Mariposa and “F” streets in the Chinatown district of Downtown Fresno. The site is in close proximity

to the planned High Speed Rail station on approximately 0.60 acres. Staff envisions a four-story midrise

structure with up to (57) residential units and approximately 4,500 sq. ft. of commercial space.

Attachments:  Exhibit A — Organizational Chart
Exhibit B - Site Plan
Exhibit C — Development Proforma
Exhibit D — Operating Budget
Exhibit E — 15 Year Projection

20




Exhibit

- A

Doragon @ Chinatown
Ownership Structure

Doragon @ Chinatown, LP

the "Partnership"

Doragon @ Chinatown AGP, LLC
"Administrative General Partner"
0.005%

| "Sole Member"
100%

Silvercrest, Inc.
Managing General Partner
0.005%

Housing Auﬁmority of the Ci_ty of |
Fresno, California

USBCDC
"Investor Limited Partner"
99.99%

21


sscheitrum
Typewritten Text

sscheitrum
Typewritten Text
Exhibit - A 


=
)
\ ) suLDING — PROJECT INFORMATION GGLO:
= [a)
‘ m APPLICANT / DEVELOPER: FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY
1331 FULTON STREET
. v & FRESNO, CA 93721 1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
\Q N N SITE ADDRESS: 1101 F STREET Seattle, WA 98101
< FRESNO, CA 93706 http://www.gglo.com
) LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 10-16, BLK 40 FRESNO CITY
@) L APN #46706506 & 46706507
E 2 E
& ﬁ LOT AREA: 26,250 sf/ 0.60 ACRES
=
ad o) EXISTING LAND USE: V (VACANT PARCEL) VIBRANT
<C 2 PLANNED LAND USE: DTN (DOWNTOWN NEIGHBORHOOD) DRAL
E S ZONING: DTN/DT 8 WialVH W T LISRAT
SPECIFIC PLAN: FULTON CORRIDOR SPECIFIC PLAN QUALITY
HOUSING el
. PROPOSED DENSITY: 95 UNITS / ACRE T T\ ENGAGED
A J K FIRE SPRINKLERS: YES - NFPA 13
1" 174-9" 10" 400" L ALLOWED BUILDING HEIGHT: 90
7 PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT: 556"
SHORT TERM BICYCLE (E) CURB CUT TO BE REMOVED 10' PEDESTRIAN SHORT TERM BICYCLE —(E) STREET LIGHT
PARKING RACK LIGHT POLE, TYP. PARKING RACK TO BE REMOVED F STRE ET
SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA
ROAD CENTERLINE
UNITS:
— . STUDIO 15 @ 455-469 SF -
& LOFT 5 @ 846-862 SF
= 1 BEDROOM TYPE 1 5@ 689-723 SF
1 BEDROOM TYPE 2 5@ 689-723 SF
NEW CIP CONCRETE SIDEWALK 1 BEDROOM TYPE 3 1 @ 689-723 SF
— 2 BEDROOM TYPE 1 15 @ 864-1,001 SF
2 BEDROOM TYPE 2 5 @ 864-1,001 SF
2 BEDROOM TYPE 3 3 @ 864-1,001 SF
: NEW CIP CONCRETE CURB RAMP 3 BEDROOM 2@1,251 SF
2y MANAGER UNIT 1@ 1.251 SF
2l ADDRESS SIGNAGE AT TOTAL: 57 =43138 SF
3 VERHAN
° ¢ COMMUNITY AMENITIES: PROJECT:
ENTRY LOBBY 1@ 1,147 SF
BIKE ROOM 1@ 336SF
COMMUNITY ROOM 1 @1.161SF D NEW MULTI-FAMILY
TOTAL: = 2,644 SF
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
: COMMUNITY ACCESS:
o
D © 7 LEVEL 2 LAUNDRY ROOM 1@ 201SF FOR FRESNO HOUSING
LEVEL 3 LAUNDRY ROOM 1@ 198SF
- — a1 o — X COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL i LEVEL4LAUNDRYROOM 1@ 198 SF AUTHORITY
| ~ENTRY_ ENTRY ~ENTRY, ) ~ENTRY_ ‘ COVERED EXTERIOR 1@ 57SF
v B W7 N41° 28 08.00"W ! UNCOVERED EXTERIOR 1@ 9,036 S (NOT INCLUDED IN GROSS FLOOR AREA)
_ — — - - - — _— - - - - - - — — — - - — — e e e e o | e— NEW CIP CONCRETE CURB TOTAL: = 0,600 SF
© o 175.00 LN
|
RESIDENTIAL COMMON:
|
L ] I CIRCULATION 6,452 SF
I ELECTRICAL 571 SF
| ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM 67 SF
| JANITOR 136 SF
1 PLANTING AREA, TYP. MECHANICAL 503 SF
| OFFICE 476 SF
FUTURE SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOOR I TRASH COLLECTION 224 SF
FLECTRICAL RETAIL I | TOTAL: 8,429 SF
|
\ | | 21‘ FLOOR AREA CALCULATIONS PROJECT ADDRESS:
0 —
- 5 (EE T R — oSt
= i 9=z COMMUNITY AMENITY: 2644 SF FRESNO, CA 93706
o | 9 COMMUNITY ACCESS: 654 SF (+9,036 SF EXTERIOR ROOF DECK)
o | o ; RESIDENTIAL COMMON:
= 0 T i 0 — ? \\ Lo - @) CIRCULATION 6,452 SF
i ELECTRICAL 571 SF OWNER:
JE— b ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM 67 SF
;_ e ‘_' SR JANITOR 136 SF FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY
' x ’ ’| g MECHANICAL 503 SF
| . B> OFFICE 476 SF
Ei T A f (GEE KNOX BOX TRASH COLLECTION 224 SF
8 STALLS = T == { 11223 / SUBTOTAL: 8,429 SF
‘ ! . oW L RESIDENTIAL PARKING: 13,235 SF
STAIR| 1 U
" D | | A [ [T] g TOTAL GROSS FLOOR AREA: 72,228 SF (+9,036 SF EXTERIOR ROOF DECK) c
| P, r | 5 ————————— —— o ‘,\
& / | RESIDENTIAL FLOOR AREA RATIO: 72,228 SF GROSS FLOOR AREA
VAN | i LOBBY S | 26,250 SF SITE AREA
c "/} — | . STREET TREE, TYP; = 275FAR.
/' / ] 3 L /SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS REQUIRED OPEN SPACE: 2,625 SF
Y ————> 7 | i PROVIDED OPEN SPACE: 9,092 SF (EXTERIOR ROOF DECK AT LEVEL 2)
I + +
| |
—_— s — 4 '3 PARKING DEVELOPMENT DATA
o = [ =] Ll — 1w |<__(
<: T A | N || S ' L% - P VEHICLE PARKING REQUIRED: 29 STALLS
@:» S| 4=BE RS VEHICLE PARKING PROVIDED: 33 STALLS = .58 STALLS / UNIT
PARKING r- | | Eou VEHICLE PARKING STALL
GARAGE } o e ) 1 SIZE PROVIDED: 9'x 18' MIN.
_ : ‘ [ {‘, : .
1O } MSU-1 g A BICYCLE PARKING REQUIRED: 4 LONG-TERM STALLS
| — ; SECTIONAL OVERHEAD o 3 . H 4 BICYCLE PARKING PROVIDED: 30 LONG-TERM STALLS
it} ! DOOR, TYP. AT EACH LOFT i 3 ‘\
| | H | ~ : R
=O - p | - [ /\,:‘: G ; ; N
T i) SRR R e = N
i BL_D [ | 1o 2 SHORT TERM BICYCLE
o I —— R Wi PARKING RACK
] & - L <<>‘§P—‘ -
e Z0z
S W5 _ - g o @ U (E) CURB CUT TO BE REMOVED
= [ : i 1 T o s
& ‘ S i 1
1 b | N SR G
— b :
_ [l [ ] [] Ll 2
— 3 et <
] 777977 T ) ||_|_J|_>_
= b N EhE €
. ] || Eal A
T i ] N SHORT TERM BICYCLE
i B , PARKING RACK
i I
MSU-1 i - b H“/ MARK DATE  DESCRIPTION
D D a A S
B : A aa sl POROUS CONCRETE B REVISIONS
. i 156 e . PAVING, TYP.; SEE
il - Sl ¥ - ¥ LANDSCAPE PLANS
| Lo 2 TRAVEL LANE
T WEs
L j\ P 'EZD:
A=
- ‘ \ sy b
| ‘_ ! | 1O | 1 l
| - i b
“ t -3 | MSU-1 B
_ | = ;
OVERHEAD COILING DOOR, ] | | b -
- | ‘ L (o] [ T -
9 STALLS 6 STALLS i 6 STALLS | ssTALLs || (T T T ﬁ ool EEX
| S i 45 nE 04/01/2020  PLAN CHECK RESUBMITTAL
. - oy Egi
— r £ £ £ &6 — — e f————— \\1; i o i plen - W . 12/10/2019  PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL
‘ \ S
| | — 7 o i I e 09/12/2017  DP SUBMITTAL
| IRE PUMP 5 | MSU-1 o PRIVATE PATIO, TYP. 09/05/2017  DRC MEETING
| o \:' ;
| ROOM i B MARK DATE DESCRIPTION
| A S
@ 2D K EccEigE 0 ISSUE INFORMATION
o ; e — e
GARAGE EXIT 175-0°G AﬁGE B
A 4 ENTRY KNOX BOX - PROJECT NO.: 2017045.02
‘ ‘ NEW CIP CONCRETE GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE: JF
FAGAN ALLEY - /DR'VEWAY’ ALLEY ENTRANCE GGLO PROJECT MANAGER: MA
hs OWNER APPROVAL:
A ” A
S W SHEET TITLE
Sy ) PRELIMINARY SITE
A PLAN
(E) BUILDING {
=3 =]
N
2 SHEET NO.
g PLAN
SITE PLAN e
2 P e e —
§ COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
o ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"
22
1 2 5 6



EXHIBIT C

The Monarch @ Chinatown

Development Sources and Uses

Sources of Funds 6/15/2020
CalHFA Perm Loan S 1,935,000
Fresno HA Loan (IIG Grant) S 1,160,000
City HOME Funds S 397,118
Fresno HA Loan (TCC Housing) S 8,007,319
Fresno HA Loan (TCC Infrastructure) S 2,800,000
CalHFA Subordinate Loan S 775,000
Fresno HA Loan (EPRI/Solar Grant) S 850,876
Fresno HA Capital Loan S 950,000
Accrued Deferred Interest S 148,193
Deferred Developer Fee S 661,201
General Partner Contribution (Developer Fee) S 1,484,119
General Partner Capital S 100
LIHTC Equity (US Bank limited partner) S 14,773,610
Total Sources of Funds S 33,942,536
Uses of Funds Amount

Land Cost $225,000
Residential Construction Costs $19,980,625
Commercial Construction Costs $660,000
Parking $1,218,000
Infrastructure (Site Improvements & Off-sites) $1,551,858
Solar $473,200
TCC Required Transit Passes & Tracking Tool $98,384
Relocation $65,000
Hard/Soft Contingencies $1,319,193
Permits/Impact Fees/etc. $802,514
Professional Fees 51,678,711
Loan Fees and other Soft Costs $1,802,311
Reserves $336,240
Developer Fee $3,731,500
Total Uses of Funds S 33,942,536

*Draft as of 6/15/2020

23



Exhibit D

The Monarch @ Chinatown
Projected Stabilized Operating Budget

Net Rent | Ann. Rent
Unit Type # Units | % AMI| SF/Unit | Per Unit Total

Studio (RAD PBV) 3 30% 455-469 367 S 13,212
Studio 2 30% 455-469 367 S 8,808
1 Bedroom (RAD PBV) 5 30% | 689-723 393 $ 23,580
2 Bedrooms (RAD PBV) 2 30% | 864-1,048 472 S 11,328
2 Bedrooms (Section 18) 3 30% | 864-1,048 472 S 16,992
Studio 4 50% 455-469 612 S 29,376
1 Bedroom 4 50% 689-723 656 S 31,488
2 Bedroom 5 50% | 864-1,048 787 S 47,220
3 Bedroom 1 50% 1,315 908 S 10,896
Studio 6 60% 455-469 644 S 46,368
1 Bedroom 7 60% 689-723 787 S 66,108
2 Bedroom 13 60% | 864-1,048 865 S 134,940
3 Bedroom 1 60% 1,315 1010 | S 12,120
3Bd/2Bath**Managers Unit 1 1,315 S -

HUD RAD PBYV Subsidy S 35,652
Section 18 Subsidy S 21,816
TOTAL REVENUE 57 $ 509,827
RESIDENTIAL OPERATING EXPENSES Per Unit TOTAL

Management Fee 504| S 28,728
Advertising/Marketing/Security 95| S 5,400
Legal and Accounting 219( S 12,500
Utilities (water, electricity, gas, etc.) 842| S 48,000
Payroll: Onsite Manager(s)/Staff 939| $ 53,500
Payroll: Taxes/Benefits 482( S 27,500
Maintenance/Repairs 1,070 S 61,000
Real Estate Property Tax 35(S 2,000
Insurance 428( S 24,379
Services 400( S 22,800
Office Expense/Misc. Admin. 439| S 25,000
CalHFA Monitoring 132( $ 7,500
Total Operating Expenses 5,584 318,307
Replacement Reserves 500 28,500
Total Operating and Reserve Budget 6,084 346,807

24




Exhibit E
The Monarch @ Chinatown

RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT - 15 YEAR CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

INCOME FROM HOUSING UNITS Inflation Year 2 Year3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15

Schedule Rental Income 2.0% $ 452,359 $ 461,406 $ 470,634 $480,047 $489,648 $499,441 $509,430 $519,618 $530,011 $540,611 $551,423 $562,452 $573,701 $585,175 $ 596,878
HUD RAD PBV Rental Subsidy 20% $ 35652 $ 36365 $ 37,092 $ 37,834 $ 38591 $ 39,363 $ 40,150 $ 40,953 $ 41,772 S 42,607 S 43,460 S 44,329 S 45215 S 46,120 $ 47,042
Section 18 Subsidy 20% $ 21,816 $ 22,252 S 22,697 $ 23,151 $ 23,614 $ 24,087 $ 24,568 $ 25,060 $ 25561 S 26,072 S 26,594 $ 27,125 S 27,668 S 28221 $ 28,786
Misc. Income $ 6840 S 6977 $ 7,16 $ 7,259 $ 7,404 $ 7552 $ 7,703 $ 7,857 $ 8014 $ 8174 $ 8338 ¢ 8505 $ 8675 S 8848 $ 9,025
GROSS POTENTIAL INCOME - HOUSING $ 516,667 $ 527,000 $ 537,540 $548,291 $559,257 $570,442 $581,851 $593,488 $605358 $617,465 $629,814 $642,410 $655,259 $668,364 $ 681,731
VACANCY ASSUMPTIONS

Vacancy Loss 50% $ (22,960) $  (23,070) $ (23,532) $ (24,002) $ (24,482) $ (24,972) $ (25,471) $ (25,981) $ (26,501) $ (27,031) $ (27,571) $ (28,123) $ (28,685) $ (29,259) $  (29,844)
HUD RAD PBV Vacancy 50% $  (1,783) $ (1,818) $  (1,855) $ (1,892) $ (1,930) $ (1,968) $ (2,007) $ (2,048) $ (2,089) $ (2,130) $ (2,173) $ (2,216) $ (2,261) $ (2,306) $  (2,352)
Section 18 Vacancy 50% $  (1,091) $ (1,113) $  (1,135) $ (1,158) $ (1,181) $ (1,204) $ (1,228) $ (1,253) $ (1,278) $ (1,304) $ (1,330) $ (1,356) $ (1,383) $ (1,411) $  (1,439)
TOTAL VACANCY LOSS $ (25,833) $ (24,889) $ (25,386) $ (25,894) $ (26,412) $ (26,940) $ (27,479) $ (28,029) $ (28,589) $ (29,161) $ (29,744) $ (30,339) $ (30,946) $ (31,565) $ (32,196)
EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME $ 490,834 $ 502,112 $ 512,154 $522,397 $532,845 $543,502 $554,372 $565459 $576,769 $588,304 $600,070 $612,071 $624,313 $636,799 $ 649,535
OPERATING EXPENSES & RESERVE DEPOSITS

Operating Expenses 3.0% $ 318307 $ 327,856 $ 337,692 $347,823 $358257 $369,005 $380,075 $391,477 $403,222 $415318 $427,778 $440,611 $453,830 $467,445 S 481,468
Replacement Reserve 0.0% $ 28500 $ 28500 $ 28500 $ 28500 $ 28500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500 $ 28,500
TOTAL EXPENSES & RESERVES $ 346,807 $ 356,356 $ 366,192 $376,323 $386,757 $397,505 $408,575 $419,977 $431,722 $443,818 $456,278 $469,111 $482,330 $495,945 $ 509,968
NET OPERATING INCOME $ 144,027 $ 145756 $ 145,962 $146,074 $146,088 $145997 $145797 $145482 $145047 $144,486 $143,792 $142,960 $141,983 $140,855 $ 139,567
DEBT SERVICE

Bank Loan $ 118674 S 118,674 $ 118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118674 $118674 S 118,674
Total Required Debt Service $ 118674 S 118,674 $ 118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 $118,674 S 118,674
Net Cash Flow $ 25353 $ 27,082 $ 27,288 $ 27,400 $ 27,414 $ 27,323 $ 27,123 $ 26,808 $ 26,373 $ 25,812 $ 25,118 $ 24,286 $ 23,309 $ 22,181 $ 20,893
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 1.21 1.23 1.23 1.23 1.23 1.23 1.23 1.23 1.22 1.22 1.21 1.20 1.20 1.19 1.18



RESOLUTION NO.
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
DOCUMENTS, THE ADMISSION OF CERTAIN PARTNERS TO DORAGON @
CHINATOWN, LP (“PARTNERSHIP”) AND THE EXECUTION OF SUCH
DOCUMENTS TO IMPLEMENT PROJECT FINANCING BY THE HOUSING
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND
IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE MANAGER AND SOLE MEMBER OF DORAGON @
CHINATOWN AGP, LLC, THE ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL PARTNER OF THE
PARTNERSHIP, IN CONNECTION WITH THE FINANCING, DEVELOPMENT AND
OPERATION OF THE MONARCH @ CHINATOWN PROJECT, AND PROVIDING
FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California (the “Authority” or
“HACF”) seeks to expand the development and availability of long-term housing for low income
persons residing in the City of Fresno, California (the “City”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized, among other things, to enter into partnership and
operating agreements and to make loans to partnerships to finance, plan, undertake, construct,
acquire and operate housing projects; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has agreed to facilitate the acquisition and construction of
approximately 0.60 acres located at 1101 F Street, Fresno, California 93706 (APN 467-065-06 and
467-065-07) (the “Property”), for the purposes of the development and construction of a fifty-
seven (57) unit affordable housing project to be known as The Monarch @ Chinatown consisting
of (1) fifty-six (56) low-income housing tax credit units (“LIHTC Units”), thirteen (13) units of
which LIHTC Units will convert from existing public housing projects; and (ii) one (1) manager’s
unit (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) has authorized
the Authority’s participation in its Rental Assistance Demonstration Program (“RAD”) and the
conversion of (i) ten (10) Rental Assistance Demonstration Program Project Based Voucher units
(“RAD PBYV Units”), which will transfer from an existing affordable housing development known
as Fairview Heights Terrace (the “Fairview Units”); and (ii) three (3) Section 18 Project Based
Voucher units (“PBV Units”), which will transfer from an existing affordable housing
development known as Monte Vista Terrace (the “Monte Vista Units”). In accordance with the
RAD/Section 18 Blend program requirements, the Project will be subject to certain long-term
affordability restrictions imposed by HUD which shall be superior to all other financing
documents; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has entered into an Operating Agreement dated as of August 20, 2019,
pursuant to which the Authority is the manager and sole member of Doragon @ Chinatown AGP,

DMEAST #40763889 v4 1 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
26



LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Administrative General Partner”), and the
Authority filed Articles of Organization with the California Secretary of State on August 20, 2019;
and

WHEREAS, the Administrative General Partner, together with Silvercrest, Inc., entered into an
Agreement of Limited Partnership dated as of August 20, 2019, pursuant to which the
Administrative General Partner is the “Administrative GP” and Silvercrest, Inc. is the “Managing
GP” (collectively the “General Partners”), and Silvercrest, Inc. is the “Limited Partner” of
Doragon (@ Chinatown, LP, a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), and also filed a
Certificate of Limited Partnership with the California Secretary of State on August 20, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Administrative General Partner, Silvercrest, Inc., as managing general partner
(the “Managing General Partner”) and withdrawing limited partner, and U.S. Bancorp
Community Development Corporation, its successors and assigns (the “Federal Credit Limited
Partner”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the “State Credit Limited Partner” and together
with the Federal Credit Limited Partner, the “Investor Limited Partner”) will enter into an
Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Doragon @ Chinatown, LP; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to sell the Property to the Partnership, and the Partnership
intends to acquire the Property and develop the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Partnership has requested the Authority to make available funds to assist with
the financial closing of the Project through the temporary deferral of payment of developer fees
payable to the Authority by the Partnership (the “Developer Fee”) and through a contribution by
the Authority as the Administrative General Partner of equity in an amount not to exceed One
Million Eight Hundred Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,800,000) (the “GP Contribution”); and

WHEREAS, the Partnership has requested the Authority make several construction and
permanent source loans from grants made available to the Authority through various state agencies
and from capital funds available from the Authority as follows: (i) a loan in the approximate
amount of $8,007,319 made possible by the California Strategic Growth Council’s Transformative
Climate Communities Program (“TCC”) Affordable Housing Development component (the
“HACF (TCC-AHD Loan”); (ii) a loan in the approximate amount of $2,800,000 from the TCC
Housing Related Infrastructure component (the “HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan”); together with the
HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan, the “HACF TCC Loans”); (iii) a loan in the approximate amount of
$850,876 from a solar grant program through the California Energy Commission (the “HACF
(EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan”); and (iv) a loan in the approximate amount of $950,000 from capital
funds (the “HACF (Cap Funds) Loan”); and

WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development
(“HCD”) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (“NOFA”) for the allocation of funds
through the Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (“b”) established under Assembly Bill 101
(Chapter 159, Statues of 2019) and Part 12.5 (commencing with section 53559) of Division of the
Health and Safety Code, which authorizes the Department to approve funding allocations utilizing
monies made available by the State Legislature, subject to the terms and conditions of the statute
and the IIG Guidelines implemented October 30, 2019; and

DMEAST #40763889 v4 2 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
27



WHEREAS, the Authority, as recipient under the NOFA, has applied for and will receive an
allocation of funds in the amount of $1,160,000 (“IIG Grant”) and intends to make the IIG Grant
funds available in the form of a construction and permanent loan to the Partnership (the “HACF
(IIG) Loan” and collectively with the HACF TCC Loans, the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan
and the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan, the “HACF Loans”); and

WHEREAS, the Partnership will finance the cost of acquiring and constructing the Project with
numerous sources of funds, projected to include (i) an estimated equity investment of
$14,805,583.00 from the Investor Limited Partner eligible to benefit from state and federal low-
income housing tax credits allocated to the Project under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code;
(i1) a tax-exempt construction loan financed from proceeds of the California Housing Finance
Agency Limited Obligation Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Doragon at Chinatown) 2020
Issue T issued by the California Housing Finance Agency (“CalHFA”) in the amount of up to
NINETEEN MILLION and 00/100 DOLLARS ($19,000,000.00) (the “Bonds”) that are
purchased by U.S. Bank National Association (“USBNA”) and the sale proceeds of which are
loaned to Borrower (the "USBNA Construction Loan"); (iii) construction and permanent
financing from the City of Fresno’s HOME Investment Partnerships Program in the approximate
amount of $397,118 (the “City HOME Loan”); (iv) permanent financing from CalHFA in the
approximate amount of $1,950,000 (the “CalHFA Permanent Loan”); (v) CalHFA permanent
subordinate financing in the approximate amount of $775,000 (the “CalHFA Subordinate
Loan”); and (vi) the HACF Loans; (collectively, the “Project Financing”)

WHEREAS, as a condition to making the USBNA Construction Loan to the Partnership, USBNA
has required that the Authority execute (i) that certain Repayment and Completion Guaranty, and
(i1) that certain Environmental and ADA Indemnification Agreement (collectively, the “USBNA
Guaranty Documents”™); and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to act as a lender of the HACF Loans, the developer of the
Project, the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner and guarantor of
certain obligations connected with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to ratify and confirm all actions of the Authority and its officers
prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution and to authorize such actions
subsequent to the date hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized to delegate to one or more of its agents and employees
such powers as it deems proper;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. Development Services. The CEO/Executive Director, Preston Prince, the Deputy
Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, the Chief of Staff, Angelina Nguyen, and/or their respective
designees (each, an “Authorized Officer” and, collectively, the “Authorized Officers”), and each
of them acting alone, are authorized and directed to enter into a Development Agreement with the
Partnership and to execute such other documents and take such other actions as necessary to fulfill

DMEAST #40763889 v4 3 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
28



the Authority’s intended functions as developer of the Project (including any subcontracts with
respect thereto).

2. General Partner Function. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are
authorized and directed to cause the Authority, in its capacity as manager of the Administrative
General Partner, to take all actions and execute all documents necessary for the Administrative
General Partner to carry out its function as administrative general partner of the Partnership,
including without limitation by execution of the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of the Partnership and any amendment thereto in furtherance of such admissions;
provided further, that in such capacity, the Authority is authorized and directed to cause the
Administrative General Partner to approve the admission of the Investor Limited Partner to the
Partnership.

3. Approval of Partnership Documents. The Authority has been presented with drafts of
the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “Partnership Documents” (the “Partnership
Documents”) in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with
the Authority’s Secretary. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized
and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the
manager of the Administrative General Partner, the Partnership Documents substantially in the
form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer may approve on the
Authority’s behalf or as the manager of the Administrative General Partner any further changes to
the draft Partnership Documents, including material changes, and such Authorized Officer’s
signature on the final Partnership Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of
such changes. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the
manager of the Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be
executed by the Authority, the Administrative General Partner or as the manager of the
Administrative General Partner of the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the Partnership Documents.

4. Approval of HUD Documents. The Authority has been presented with drafts of the
documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HUD Documents” (the “HUD Documents™) in
connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with the Authority’s
Secretary. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as manager of the Administrative General Partner to execute
and deliver the HUD Documents and all documents deemed necessary to appropriate to obtain
HUD approval related to the Project, including without limitation, a use agreement in order to
maintain and operate the Project in accordance with the RAD program for which the Partnership
will be provided a subsidy funded with money received from HUD pursuant to a Project-Based
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Contract; provided however, any Authorized Officer may
approve on the Authority's behalf or as the manager of the Administrative General Partner any
further changes to the draft HUD Documents, including material changes, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final HUD Documents shall be construed as the Authority's approval of
such changes. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as manager

DMEAST #40763889 v4 4 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
29



of the Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by
the Authority or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by the HUD Documents.

5. Approval of the Making of the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan. The Authority has been
presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (TCC-AHD)
Loan Documents” (the “HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents”) to be executed by the
Partnership and the Authority to effectuate the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan, which Loan Documents
are on file with the Authority's Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow the
HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan from the Authority. The making of the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan in the
approximate amount of $8,007,319.00 in lieu of receiving proceeds from the sale of the Property,
is hereby authorized and the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized
and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf, any further changes to the draft HACF (TCC-
AHD) Loan Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be loaned, and such
Authorized Officer’s signature on the final HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents shall be
construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, to carry out the transactions contemplated by the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents.
Each Authorized Officer, and each of them acting alone, is authorized to decrease the principal
amount of the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan by any amount, or to increase the principal amount of the
HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan by an amount up to 10% more than the principal amount stated in this
resolution. The source of funds for any such increase shall be any funds available to the Authority.

6. Approval of the Making of the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan. The Authority has been
presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (TCC-HRI)
Loan Documents” (the “HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents”) to be executed by the Partnership
and the Authority to effectuate the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan, which Loan Documents are on file
with the Authority's Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow the HACF (TCC-
HRI) Loan from the Authority. The making of the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan in the approximate
amount of $2,800,000.00 in lieu of receiving proceeds from the sale of the Property, is hereby
authorized and the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed
to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents
substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer
may approve on the Authority’s behalf, any further changes to the draft HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be loaned, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, to carry out
the transactions contemplated by the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents. Each Authorized
Officer, and each of them acting alone, is authorized to decrease the principal amount of the HACF
(TCC-HRI) Loan by any amount, or to increase the principal amount of the HACF (TCC-HRI)
Loan by an amount up to 10% more than the principal amount stated in this resolution. The source
of funds for any such increase shall be any funds available to the Authority.

DMEAST #40763889 v4 5 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
30



7. Approval of the IIG Grant. In connection with the IIG Grant, the Authority is authorized
and directed to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of California Standard Agreement, and any
and all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the full
intent and purpose of the above resolution, in order to evidence the IIG Grant, the Recipient's
obligations related thereto, and the Department's security therefore; including, but not limited to,
an affordable housing covenant, a performance deed of trust, a disbursement agreement, and
certain other documents required by the Department as security for, evidence of or pertaining to
the IIG Grant, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the "IIG Grant Documents").

8. Approval of the Making of the HACF (IIG) Loan. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (IIG) Loan Documents”
(the “HACF (IIG) Loan Documents”) to be executed by the Partnership and the Authority to
effectuate the HACF (IIG) Loan, which Loan Documents are on file with the Authority's Secretary,
and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow the HACF (IIG) Loan from the Authority. The
making of the HACF (IIG) Loan in the approximate amount of $1,160,000.00 in licu of receiving
proceeds from the sale of the Property, is hereby authorized and the Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority,
the HACF (IIG) Loan Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided
however, any Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf, any further changes to
the draft HACF (IIG) Loan Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be
loaned, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final HACF (IIG) Loan Documents shall
be construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, to carry out the transactions contemplated by the HACF (IIG) Loan Documents. Each
Authorized Officer, and each of them acting alone, is authorized to decrease the principal amount
of the HACF (IIG) Loan by any amount, or to increase the principal amount of the HACF (IIG)
Loan by an amount up to 10% more than the principal amount stated in this resolution. The source
of funds for any such increase shall be any funds available to the Authority.

0. Approval of the Making of the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan. The Authority has
been presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF
(EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents” (the “HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents”) to
be executed by the Partnership and the Authority to effectuate the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan,
which Loan Documents are on file with the Authority's Secretary, and pursuant to which the
Partnership will borrow the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan from the Authority. The making of
the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan in the approximate amount of $850,876.00 in lieu of receiving
proceeds from the sale of the Property, is hereby authorized and the Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority,
the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents substantially in the form on file with the
Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf, any
further changes to the draft HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents, including material
changes, and the final amount to be loaned, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final
HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of such
changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, any other documents

DMEAST #40763889 v4 6 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
31



reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents. Each Authorized Officer, and each of them acting
alone, is authorized to decrease the principal amount of the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan by
any amount, or to increase the principal amount of the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan by an
amount up to 10% more than the principal amount stated in this resolution. The source of funds
for any such increase shall be any funds available to the Authority.

10.  Approval of the Making of the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan. The Authority has been
presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (Cap Funds)
Loan Documents” (the “HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents”) to be executed by the
Partnership and the Authority to effectuate the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan, which Loan Documents
are on file with the Authority's Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow the
HACF (Cap Funds) Loan from the Authority. The making of the (Cap Funds) Loan in the
approximate amount of $950,000.00 in lieu of receiving proceeds from the sale of the Property, is
hereby authorized and the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf, any further changes to the draft HACF (Cap Funds)
Loan Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be loaned, and such
Authorized Officer’s signature on the final HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents shall be construed
as the Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and
each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of
the Authority, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, to carry
out the transactions contemplated by the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents. Each Authorized
Officer, and each of them acting alone, is authorized to decrease the principal amount of the HACF
(Cap Funds) Loan by any amount, or to increase the principal amount of the HACF (Cap Funds)
Loan by an amount up to 10% more than the principal amount stated in this resolution. The source
of funds for any such increase shall be any funds available to the Authority.

11. Approval of Deferred Developer Fee and GP Contribution. The Authorized Officers,
and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf
or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner to temporarily defer the
payment of a portion of the Developer Fee of an amount of approximately $661,201 and to approve
a GP Contribution by the Administrative General Partner to the Partnership in an amount not to
exceed One Million Eight Hundred Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,800,000) as necessary or
desirable to provide sufficient funds for the Project.

12. Approval of Loan Assembly Activities. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting
alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and
manager of the Administrative General Partner to execute, deliver and/or file (or cause to be
delivered and/or filed) all documents deemed necessary or appropriate to assemble the Project
Financing, including without limitation, construction, permanent and third party loan applications,
tax credit applications, and any and all other documents reasonably required to (i) cause the
Investor Limited Partner to make capital contribution(s) to the Partnership, and (ii) borrow
sufficient funds to support the Project.

DMEAST #40763889 v4 7 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
32



13. Loan of Funds. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, on behalf of the
Authority in its capacity as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner,
are authorized to take such actions and execute such documents as necessary to cause the
Partnership to borrow funds from USBNA, CalHFA, the City of Fresno, and the Authority in an
aggregate approximate amount of up to $35,000,000. Each Authorized Officer, and each of them
acting alone, is authorized to decrease the principal amount of any loan by any amount, or to
increase the principal amount of any loan by an amount up to 10% more than the maximum
aggregate principal amount for the loans stated in this resolution. The source of funds for any such
increase shall be funds available to the Authority and/or the Partnership or such other funds that
may become available to the Authority and/or the Partnership for the Project. The Board directs
the Executive Director to report to the Board if the total amount borrowed by the Partnership for
the Project exceeds the aggregate maximum principal amount stated in this resolution for all loans
to the Partnership.

14. Approval of Guarantees. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are
authorized on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf, to execute and perform under such
guarantees as are deemed necessary or appropriate to the Project Financing, including without
limitation, with respect to the Partnership Documents (described below) and the USBNA Guaranty
Documents.

15.  Approval of the CalHFA Bond Documents. The Authority has been presented with drafts
of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “CalHF A Bond Documents” (the “CalHFA
Bond Documents”) in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on
file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will obtain a tax-exempt
construction loan financed from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds to USBNA. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority or as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner to enter into the transactions
described in the CalHFA Bond Documents and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security
interests and guarantees in connection with such transactions and any additional documents
required to effectuate the conversion to permanent loan contemplated thereby. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on
behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, the CalHFA Bond Documents substantially in the form on file
with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s
behalf or sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner any further changes to
the draft CalHFA Bond Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be
borrowed, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final CalHFA Bond Documents shall be
construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the CalHFA Bond Documents.

16.  Approval of USBNA Construction Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “USBNA Construction Loan

DMEAST #40763889 v4 8 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
33



Documents” (the “USBNA Construction Loan Documents”) in connection with the Partnership
and the Project, which documents are on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which
the Partnership will borrow a construction loan in the approximate amount $19,000,000.00. The
Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority
acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner
to enter into the transactions described in the USBNA Construction Loan Documents and to incur
indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with such
transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed
to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member
and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the USBNA Construction Loan Documents
substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer may
approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any further changes to the draft USBNA Construction Loan Documents,
including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized Officer’s
signature on the final USBNA Construction Loan Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s
approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting
alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting
on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, any
other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the Administrative General
Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by the USBNA Construction
Loan Documents.

17. Approval of CalHFA Permanent L.oan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “CalHFA Permanent Loan
Documents” (the “CalHFA Permanent Loan Documents™) in connection with the Partnership
and the Project, which documents are on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which
the Partnership will borrow a permanent loan in the approximate amount not to exceed
$1,950,000.00. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf
of the Authority or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner to enter
into the transactions described in the CalHFA Permanent Loan Documents and to incur
indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with such
transactions and any additional documents required to effectuate the conversion to permanent loan
contemplated thereby. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the CalHFA Permanent Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft CalHFA Permanent Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final CalHFA Permanent Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority or the
Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by the CalHFA Permanent Loan
Documents.

DMEAST #40763889 v4 9 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
34



18.  Approval of HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan
Documents” in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with
the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an approximate
aggregate total amount of $8,007,319.00 from the Authority for construction and permanent
financing. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner to enter into the transactions described in the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan
Documents and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in
connection with such transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf
or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the HACF (TCC-AHD)
Loan Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any
Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of
the Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amounts. The Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the
Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents.

19.  Approval of HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan
Documents in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with
the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an approximate
aggregate total amount of $2,800,000.00 from the Authority for construction and permanent
financing. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner to enter into the transactions described in the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents
and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with
such transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amounts. The Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the

DMEAST #40763889 v4 10 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
35



Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents.

20.  Approval of City HOME Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented with drafts
of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “City HOME Loan Documents” (the “City
HOME Loan Documents”) in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents
are on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an
approximate aggregate total amount of $397,118.00 from the Authority for construction and
permanent financing. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on
behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner to enter into the transactions described in the City HOME Loan
Documents and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in
connection with such transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf
or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the City HOME Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft City HOME Loan Documents,
including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized Officer’s
signature on the final City HOME Loan Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval
of such changes and final loan amounts. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone,
are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its
own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, any other
documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the Administrative General
Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by the City HOME Loan
Documents.

21.  Approval of HACF (1IG) Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented with drafts
of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (IIG) Loan Documents” in
connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with the Authority’s
Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an approximate aggregate total
amount of $1,160,000.00 from the Authority for construction and permanent financing. The
Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority
acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner
to enter into the transactions described in the HACF (IIG) Loan Documents and to incur
indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with such
transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed
to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member
and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the HACF (IIG) Loan Documents
substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized Officer may
approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner any further changes to the draft HACF (IIG) Loan Documents, including material
changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final
HACF (IIG) Loan Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes and
final loan amounts. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized
and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the

DMEAST #40763889 v4 11 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
36



sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably
required to be executed by the Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to
carry out the transactions contemplated by the HACF (IIG) Loan Documents.

22. Approval of HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents. The Authority has been
presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (EPRI/Solar
Grant) Loan Documents” in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are
on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an
approximate aggregate total amount of $850,876.00 from the Authority for construction and
permanent financing. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on
behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner to enter into the transactions described in the HACF (EPRI/Solar
Grant) Loan Documents and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and
guarantees in connection with such transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting
alone, are authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its
own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the HACF
(EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided
however, any Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and
manager of the Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft HACF (EPRI/Solar
Grant) Loan Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and
such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents shall
be construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amounts. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents.

23. Approval of HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “HACF (Cap Funds) Loan
Documents” in connection with the Partnership and the Project, which documents are on file with
the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which the Partnership will borrow an approximate
aggregate total amount of $950,000.00 from the Authority for construction and permanent
financing. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner to enter into the transactions described in the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents
and to incur indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with
such transactions. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft HACF (Cap Funds) Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amounts. The Authorized Officers, and each

DMEAST #40763889 v4 12 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
37



of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the
Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents.

24.  Approval of CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents. The Authority has been presented
with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “CalHFA Subordinate Loan
Documents” (the “CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents”) in connection with the Partnership
and the Project, which documents are on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to which
the Partnership will borrow a permanent loan in the approximate amount not to exceed
$775,000.00. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of
the Authority or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner to enter
into the transactions described in the CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents and to incur
indebtedness and grant liens and security interests and guarantees in connection with such
transactions and any additional documents required to effectuate the conversion to permanent loan
contemplated thereby. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the CalHFA Subordinate Loan
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft CalHFA Subordinate Loan
Documents, including material changes, and the final amount to be borrowed, and such Authorized
Officer’s signature on the final CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents shall be construed as the
Authority’s approval of such changes and final loan amount. The Authorized Officers, and each
of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the Authority, the
Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions contemplated by
the CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents.

25.  Approval of the Supportive Services Agreement. The Authority has been presented with
the Supportive Services Contract dated as of October 30, 2019, between the Authority and the
Partnership (the “Supportive Services Contract”) in connection with the Authority providing
supportive services to residents of the Project, which Supportive Service Contract is on file with
the Authority’s Secretary. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf
or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, any future amendment
to the Supportive Services Contract, if any; provided however, any Authorized Officer may
approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative
General Partner any future amendments to the Supportive Services Contract, including
amendments making material changes, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on a future
amendment to the Supportive Services Contract shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of
such changes. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and
directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole
member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably

DMEAST #40763889 v4 13 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
38



required to be executed by the Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to
carry out the transactions contemplated by the Supportive Services Contract.

26.  Approval of the Project Transfer and Acquisition Documents. The Authority has been
presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading “Acquisition
Documents” (the “Acquisition Documents”) in connection with the purchase and development of
certain land owned by the Authority which will be conveyed to the Partnership on which the
Project is to be built, which documents are on file with the Authority’s Secretary, and pursuant to
which the Partnership will acquire the Property for a purchase price not to exceed $225,000 at
closing (less any previous deposits into escrow). The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting
alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting
on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the
Acquisition Documents and to purchase and take such other actions as they deem necessary or
desirable for the Partnership to acquire and develop the Property; provided however, any
Authorized Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of
the Administrative General Partner any further changes to the draft Acquisition Documents,
including material changes, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final Acquisition
Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the Acquisition Documents.

27. Approval of the Management Agent and Management Agent Documents. GSF
Properties, Inc., as the management agent is approved to manage the Project. The Authority has
been presented with drafts of the documents listed in Exhibit A under the heading "Management
Agent Documents" (the "Management Agent Documents") in connection with the management
of the Project. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed
to approve and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the
sole member and manager of the Administrative General Partner, the Management Agent
Documents substantially in the form on file with the Authority; provided however, any Authorized
Officer may approve on the Authority’s behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, any further changes to the draft Management Agent Documents,
including material changes, and such Authorized Officer’s signature on the final Management
Agent Documents shall be construed as the Authority’s approval of such changes. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed to execute and deliver,
on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, any other documents reasonably required to be executed by the
Authority, the Administrative General Partner, or the Partnership to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the Management Agent Documents.

28. Assignments. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on
behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager of the
Administrative General Partner, to execute and deliver one or more instruments (i) causing the
Partnership to assume the Authority’s rights under the construction contract, the architects’

DMEAST #40763889 v4 14 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
39



contracts, and other consultant and development contracts, as such rights pertain to the acquisition
and construction of the Project, to the extent required by the Investor Limited Partner, and (ii)
assigning to lenders and others the Partnership’s interests in such contracts as may be required as
a condition of the Project Financing, and (iii) to effectuate the assignment and assumption of any
existing Acquisition Documents, CalHFA Bond Documents, USBNA Construction Loan
Documents, CalHFA Permanent Loan Documents, the City HOME Loan Documents, the HACF
(TCC-AHD) Loan Documents, the HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents, the HACF (IIG) Loan
Documents, HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents, the HACF (Cap Funds) Loan
Documents, and the CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents.

29. Execution of Documents. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are
authorized on behalf of the Authority acting on its own behalf or as the sole member and manager
of the Administrative General Partner, to execute, deliver and/or file (or cause to be delivered
and/or filed) any affidavits, certificates, letters, government forms, documents, agreements and
instruments that any such Authorized Officer determines to be necessary or desirable: (i) to give
effect to this resolution; (ii) to consummate the transactions contemplated herein; (iii) to further
the acquisition, rehabilitation, development, financing, construction, and leasing of the Project;
and/or (iv) to further the management of the Fairview Units and Monte Vista Units. Without
limiting the scope of such authorization, such documents include declarations of restrictive
covenants, regulatory agreements, various deeds, leases, notes, loan agreements, deeds of trust,
guaranties and indemnities and collateral assignments related to the Project Financing. Such
documents may also include, without limitation, lease-up and marketing agreements, partnership
management services agreements, development agreements, construction guaranty agreements,
repayment guarantees, cash pledge agreements, environmental indemnity agreements, property
management agreements, architect agreements, contractor agreements, housing assistance
payment contracts, irrevocable consents, confessions of judgment and appointments of attorneys
for service of process.

30. Expenditures. The Authority is authorized to expend such funds (and to cause the
Partnership and the Administrative General Partner to expend such funds) as are necessary to pay
for all filing fees, application fees, registration fees and other costs relating to the Project or actions
authorized by this resolution.

31. Acting Officers Authorized. Any action required by this resolution to be taken by the
Chair of the Board or Executive Director of the Authority may, in the absence of such person, be
taken by the duly authorized acting Chair of the Board or acting Executive Director of the
Authority, respectively or by the designee of the Chair of the Board or Executive Director.

32. Execution of Obligations. The Board directs the Authority’s Executive Director to cause
the Authority to fulfill the Authority’s duties and obligations under the various agreements
authorized.

33.  Ratification and Confirmation. All actions of the Authority and its officers prior to the
date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed, including,
but not limited to, the formation of the Partnership and the Administrative General Partner, and the

DMEAST #40763889 v4 15 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
40



filing of finance applications related to the Project Financing and the prior execution of any Project
documents listed on Exhibit A or otherwise required herein.

34.  Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption
and approval.

DMEAST #40763889 v4 16 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
41



PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF , 2020. I, the undersigned,
herby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the
following vote, to-wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners

DMEAST #40763889 v4 17 The Monarch @ Chinatown — HACF Resolutions
42



CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, the duly appointed CEO/Executive Director of the Housing Authority
of the City of Fresno, California (the “Authority”), as keeper of the records of the Authority,
CERTIFY:

1. That the attached Resolution No. (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct
copy of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority, as adopted at a meeting of
the Authority held on the day of , 2020, and duly recorded in the minute
books of the Authority.

2. That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with
law, and, to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a
quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of the Board of
Commissioners of the Authority present at the meeting voted in the proper manner for the adoption
of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of
the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that I am
authorized to execute this Certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of ,
2020.
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director
DMEAST #40763889 v4

43



EXHIBIT A
PROJECT DOCUMENTS

Partnership Documents

(a) Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Doragon @
Chinatown, LP and all exhibits attached thereto which require execution;
HUD Documents
(b) RAD Conversion Commitment by the Authority and the Partnership;
(c) RAD Use Agreement by the Partnership;
(d) Housing Assistance Payments Contract — RAD for the Conversion of Public
Housing to Project-Based Section 8 by the Partnership;
(e) Section 8 Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract
— Existing Housing by the Partnership and Authority
6y} HUD-required certifications and forms by the Authority and the Partnership; and
Bond Documents
(g) Paying Agent Agreement by and between USBNA and the Partnership;
(h) Master Agency Agreement between CalHFA and USBNA;
(1) Master Pledge and Assignment among CalHFA and USBNA;
() Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants by and between

CalHFA and the Partnership; and

USBNA Construction Loan Documents

(k)

M

(m)

(n)
(0)

Construction Note executed by the Partnership in favor of USBNA;

Construction Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement
and Fixture Filing, executed by the Partnership as trustor, to First American Title
Insurance Company for the benefit of USBNA as agent for CalHFA;

Assignment of Deed of Trust and Related Documents by USBNA as agent for
CalHFA given to USBNA;

Construction Loan Agreement executed by the Partnership and USBNA;

Repayment and Completion Guaranty executed by the Authority, in its capacity as
guarantor, in favor of USBNA;

44



()

(@

)

(u)

(v)

(W)

(x)

()

(2)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

Environmental and ADA Indemnification Agreement by the Partnership and the
Authority in favor of USBNA;

Assignment of Partnership Interests, Capital Contributions and Credits by the
Partnership, Silvercrest and the Administrative General Partner in favor of
USBNA;

Collateral Assignment of Contract Rights by Silvercrest and the Administrative
General Partner in favor of USBNA;

Assignment and Subordination of Construction Contract by the Partnership in favor
of USBNA and consented to by Johnston Contracting, Inc.;

Assignment and Subordination of Architect’s Contract by the Partnership in favor
of USBNA and consented to by GGLO Design, Inc.;

Assignment of Property Manager Agreement executed by the Partnership in favor
of USBNA and consented to by the Authority;

Assignment of Development Services Agreement and Developer Fee
Subordination Agreement by the Authority and the Partnership in favor of USBNA;

Assignment of Agreement to Enter Into Housing Assistance Payments Contract
between the Partnership and USBNA;

Assignment of RAD Housing Assistance Payments Contract between the
Partnership and USBNA;

Consent to Assignment of AHAP Contract as Security for Financing given by the
Authority and the Partnership;

California Judicial Reference Agreement by the Partnership, Silvercrest, the
Administrative General Partner, the Authority and USBNA;

Partnership Borrowing Authorization by Silvercrest and the Administrative
General Partner in favor of USBNA;

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
executed by USBNA and the Partnership;

Subordination Agreement (HACF and HRFC Loans) executed by Wells Fargo, the
Authority and the Partnership;

Subordination Agreement (City HOME Loan) executed by Wells Fargo, HRFC and
the Partnership; and

CalHFA Permanent Loan Documents

45



(ee)

(ff)

(gg)

(hh)

(i)

)

(kk)

California Housing Finance Agency Regulatory Agreement CalHFA Development
No. 17-027-A/N by and between the Partnership and CalHFA;

California Housing Finance Agency Promissory Note Permanent Loan CalHFA
Development No. 17-027-A/N (Permanent Financing) in favor of CalHFA;

California Housing Finance Agency Permanent Deed of Trust with Assignment of
Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing CalHFA Development No. 17-027-
A/N (Permanent Financing) in favor of CalHFA;

Promissory Note (Breakage Fee) given by the Partnership in favor of CalHFA;

California Housing Finance Agency Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and
Fixture Filing (Breakage Fee);

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(CalHFA Breakage Fee DOT) executed by CalHFA and the Partnership;

Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement by and among the Partnership, the
Authority, the City of Fresno and CalHFA; and

HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Documents

)

(mm)

(nn)

(00)

(pp)

(qq)

HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Construction Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and
Financing Statement (The Monarch @ Chinatown - HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan by
the Partnership in favor of the Authority;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan Agreement between the
Partnership and the Authority;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (TCC-AHD)Loan-Assignment of Leases and
Rents by the Partnership in favor of the Authority;

HACF (TCC-AHD) Mortgage Note (The Monarch @ Chinatown) by the
Partnership in favor of the Authority;

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (TCC-AHD) Loan) between HACF and the
Partnership;

Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement by and between the Partnership, the
Authority, and the City of Fresno; and

HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Documents

(rr)

HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Construction Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and

46



(ss)

(tt)

(uw)

(vv)

Financing Statement (The Monarch @ Chinatown - HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan by the
Partnership in favor of the Authority;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan Agreement between the
Partnership and the Authority;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (TCC-HRI)Loan-Assignment of Leases and
Rents by the Partnership in favor of the Authority;

HACF (TCC-HRI) Mortgage Note (The Monarch (@ Chinatown) by the Partnership
in favor of the Authority;

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(Monarch (@ Chinatown HACF (TCC-HRI) Loan) between HACF and the
Partnership; and

City HOME Loan Documents

(ww)  City of Fresno HOME Investment Partnerships Program Agreement by and
between the City of Fresno and the Partnership;

(xx) Declaration of Restrictions by the Partnership in favor of the City of Fresno;

(yy) Promissory Note by the Partnership in favor of the City of Fresno;

(zz) Deed of Trust by and between the Partnership as borrower to First American Title
Company for the benefit of the City of Fresno;

(aaa)  Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(City HOME Loan) between the City of Fresno and the Partnership; and

IIG Grant Documents

(bbb)  State of California Standard Agreement by and between the Authority and the State
of California Department of Housing and Community Development;

(ccc)  Declaration of Restrictive Covenant by the Partnership in favor of the State of
California Department of Housing and Community Development;

(ddd)  Disbursement Agreement by and between the Authority and the State of California

Department of Housing and Community Development; and

HACF (IIG) Loan Documents

(eee)

(fff)

HACEF (IIG) Loan Construction Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Financing
Statement (Monarch @ Chinatown - HACF (IIG) Loan by the Partnership in favor
of the Authority;

Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (IIG) Loan Agreement between the Partnership and

47



(ggg)

(hhh)

(iii)

the Authority;

Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (IIG)Loan-Assignment of Leases and Rents by the
Partnership in favor of the Authority;

HACEF (IIG) Mortgage Note (Monarch @ Chinatown) by the Partnership in favor
of the Authority;

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (IIG) Loan) between HACF and the Partnership;
and

HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Documents

i)

(kkk)

(111

(mmm)

(nnn)

HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Mortgage Note (The Monarch @ Chinatown) by
the Partnership in favor of HACF;

HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Construction Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and
Financing Statement (The Monarch @ Chinatown - HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant)
Loan) by the Partnership in favor of HACF;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan-Assignment of
Leases and Rents by the Partnership in favor of HACF;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan Agreement the
Partnership and HACF;

Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(HACF (EPRI/Solar Grant) Loan) between HACF and the Partnership; and

HACEF (Cap Funds) Loan Documents

(000)

(ppp)

(qqq)

(rrr)

HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Mortgage Note (The Monarch (@ Chinatown) by the
Partnership in favor of HACF;

HACF (Cap Funds) Construction Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and
Financing Statement (The Monarch @ Chinatown - HACF (Cap Funds) Loan) by
the Partnership in favor of HACF;

The Monarch (@ Chinatown HACF (Cap Funds) Loan-Assignment of Leases and
Rents by the Partnership in favor of HACF;

The Monarch @ Chinatown HACF (Cap Funds) Loan Agreement the Partnership
and HACF;

48



(sss) Agreement to Subordinate to Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement
(HACF (Cap Funds) Loan) between HACF and the Partnership; and

CalHFA Subordinate Loan Documents

(ttt) California Housing Finance Agency Regulatory Agreement CalHFA Development
No. 17-027-A/N by and between the Partnership and CalHFA;

(uuu)  California Housing Finance Agency Promissory Note Permanent Loan CalHFA
Development No. 17-027-A/N (Permanent Financing) in favor of CalHFA;

(vvv)  California Housing Finance Agency Permanent Deed of Trust with Assignment of
Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing CalHFA Development No. 17-027-
A/N (Permanent Financing) in favor of CalHFA; and

Acquisition Documents

(www) Purchase Agreement by and between the Authority and the Partnership;
(xxx)  Grant Deed by the Authority in favor of Partnership; and
Management Agent Documents

(yyy) Notice of Termination of existing management agreement;

(zzz) ~ Monarch (@ Chinatown Property Management Agreement between the Partnership
and GSF Properties, Inc; and

(aaaa) The Monarch @ Chinatown Management Plan.

49



FRESNOYEUAL
BeHOUSING
AUTHORITY&2

B 0 A RD TO: Board of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020

Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
M E M O FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 5e
0 (559) 443-8400 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Quincy Boren

F (559) 445-8981

1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: The Villages at Paragon (fka Plaza Terrace) — Authorizing

Fresno, California 93721 Resolution updates
TTY (800) 735-2929

. Executive Summary
www.fresnohousing.org

On December 6, 2019, the Villages at Paragon closed on project financing and
began rehabilitation on 28 units for the Villages at Paragon, formerly the Plaza
Terrace site that served as emergency housing. The project is the complete
rehabilitation of the complex to house homeless and at risk homeless individuals.
The project is underway with demolition and is about 10% complete.

As part of the financing structure, Staff secured No Place Like Home (NPLH)
funding from the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD). These funds require the execution of a Standard
Agreement, which was deferred as a post-closing item.

In finalizing the form Standard Agreement for the NPLH program, HCD has
asked that the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno use an HCD provided
resolution form to confirm the previously adoptedauthorizing omnibus
resolution, and has requested a clarification for the limited partnership
agreement. The substance of each of these documents and actions taken in
connection therewith is consistent with the previously adopted resolutions,
however HCD has required these actions as a condition to the execution of the
Standard Agreement. These changes have been made to the documents by our
Affordable Housing Attorneys at Ballard Spahr and staff has confirmed with
both Ballard Spahr and General Counsel that the changes are consistent with the
previously adopted resolutions and not consequential.Staff is recommending
that the Board adopt the attached resolution, drafted by our affordable housing
finance counsel, Ballard Spahr LLP, that address the revisions required by HCD.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Fresno Housing
Authority adopt the attached resolution, authorizing the execution and delivery
of documents in the name of the Administrative General Partner and in the name
of the Partnership, in connection with the financing, development and operation
of the Project, authorizing the lending and the borrowing of money, and
providing for other matters related thereto.

50



Fiscal Impact
NA- There is no fiscal impact associated with this action

Background Information

The Villages at Paragon apartment complex is located near the corner of Belmont and Cedar Ave (APN:
454-295-09T). The site is .68 acres and currently has 30 existing units that were previously operated as
reunification housing for families (the El Puente program). Outreach has been conducted to nearby
residents, commercial tenants, schools and others to inform them and seek input about the project.
Outreach was conducted by both Fresno Housing and DBH. The renovated site will have community space
and managers offices in one of the residential buildings. There will be full renovation of kitchens,
bathrooms, appliances, new flooring, HVAC systems, roofing and exterior repair. DBH will provide
services onsite to residents at no charge. The site will focus on housing tenants at risk or with instances of
homelessness with no or low incomes..

Past Board Actions:

— December 3, 2019: approved financial loan closing on all project funds, authorized construction to
begin

—  September 24, 2019: approved the award of an architectural contract to Anne Phillips Architecture

- September 24, 2019: approved the award of contract for general construction/construction
management services to Johnston Contracting Inc.

— June 25, 2019: approved the allocation of up to twenty-seven (27) project based vouchers

— June 25, 2019: authorized the acceptance of Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) award

— February 26, 2019: authorized the submission of a 9% LIHTC application and other funding
applications

— January 22, 2019: approved the submission of an application to the No Place Like Home program

51



RESOLUTION No.
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF: The Villages at Paragon (f/k/a Plaza Terrace)
RESOLUTION NO.

AUTHORIZATION TO PARTICIPATE IN

THE NO PLACE LIKE HOME PROGRAM

A majority of the Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California, a public
body corporate and politic (the “Corporation”), hereby consent to, adopt and ratify the following
resolutions:

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development
(“Department”) issued a Notice of Funding Availability, for Round 1 funds dated October 15, 2018,
and as amended on October 30, 2018, as may be further amended from time to time, (“NOFA”)
under the No Place Like Home Program (“NPLH” or “Program”) authorized by Government Code
section 15463, Part 3.9 of Division 5 (commencing with Section 5849.1) of the Welfare and
Institutions Code, and Welfare and Institutions Code section 5890;

WHEREAS, the NOFA related to the availability of approximately $400 million in
Competitive Allocation funds under the NPLH Program; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation was an Applicant as those terms are defined in the NPLH
Program Guidelines, dated July 17, 2017 (“Guidelines”);

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized to do business in the State of California

WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Corporation previously adopted Resolution
No. 4030 on December 3, 2019 (the “Original Resolution”), wherein the Commissioners
authorized, among other things, the execution and delivery of documents to implement project
financing by the Corporation on its own behalf and in its capacity as the manager and sole
member of The Villages at Paragon AGP, LLC, California limited liability company, the
administrative general partner (the “Administrative General Partner”) of The Villages at Paragon,
LP, a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), in connection with the financing,
development and the operation of the Villages at Paragon project (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Corporation now seeks to confirm certain authorizations made in the
Original Resolution on behalf of itself and the Administrative General Partner in connection with
the execution of certain documentation for NPLH;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Corporation does hereby determine,
declare, and ratify as follows:

SECTION 1. That the Administrative General Partner is authorized and directed on behalf
of the Partnership to borrow an amount not to exceed $3,616,466 in NPLH Program funds, as
detailed in the NOFA up to the amount authorized by Section 102 of the Guidelines and applicable
state law (the “NPLH Loan”).

DMEAST #41401286 v4 The Villages of Paragon — HACF Resolution — No Place Like Home
52



SECTION 2. That in connection with the NPLH Loan, the Corporation on its own behalf
and as manager of the Administrative General Partner is authorized and directed to enter into,
execute, and deliver a State of California Standard Agreement, and any and all other documents
required or deemed necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the full intent and purpose of the
above resolution, in order to evidence the NPLH Loan, the Partnership’s obligations related
thereto, and the Department's security therefore; including, but not limited to, a promissory note,
a deed of trust and security agreement, a regulatory agreement, a development agreement and
certain other documents required by the Department as security for, evidence of or pertaining to
the NPLH Loan, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the "NPLH Loan Documents").

SECTION 3. That in connection with the NPLH Loan, the Administrative General Partner
is authorized and directed to enter into an amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement
of Limited Partnership of The Villages at Paragon, LP, a California Limited Partnership dated as
of December 1, 2019, to clarify the management duties of the Administrative General Partner
thereunder as required by the Guidelines.

SECTION 4. That the CEO/Executive Director, Preston Prince, or the Deputy Executive
Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, or the Chief of Staff, Angelina Nguyen are hereby authorized to
execute the NPLH Loan Documents, and any amendments or modifications thereto, on behalf of
the Corporation (in its own capacity or as the manager of the Administrative General Partner).

SECTION 5. All actions of the Corporation (in its own capacity or as the manager of the
Administrative General Partner) and of the Administrative General Partner, and of their respective
officers prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and
confirmed, including, but not limited to, the formation of the Partnership and the Administrative
General Partner, and the filing of finance applications related to the Project Financing (as defined
in the Original Resolution) and the prior execution of any Project related documents listed on
Exhibit A attached to the Original Resolution or as otherwise may be required to facilitate the
Project.

SECTION 6. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

DMEAST #41401286 v4 The Villages of Paragon — HACF Resolution — No Place Like Home
53



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

Signature of Attesting Officer:

Printed Name and Title of Attesting Officer:

CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY

The undersigned, Secretary of the Corporation does hereby attest and certify that the foregoing
Resolution is a true, full and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of said
corporation which was duly convened and held on the date stated thereon, and that said
document has not been amended, modified, repealed or rescinded since its date of adoption and
is in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

DATE:

[Name] Secretary

DMEAST #41401286 v4 The Villages of Paragon — HACF Resolution — No Place Like Home
54



VIBRANT

COMMUNITIES
QUALITY ENGAGED
HOUSING RESIDENTS
# #
Bo ARD TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
M E M o Fresno Housing BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 6a
O (559) 443-8400 . . Il h
F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Tracewell Hanrahan
1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: Update on Fresno Housing’s Intergovernmental Agreement with
Fresno, California 93721 the Fresno Police Department

TTY (800) 735-2929

1

www.fresnohousing.org

Executive Summary

The purpose of this memo is to provide information to the Boards of
Commissioners on the intergovernmental agreement between Fresno Housing
(FH) and the Fresno Police Department (FPD). The current agreement is in effect
until June 30, 2020 and includes law enforcement services provided by two
sworn police officers, data, communication and community outreach. Staff will
be presenting additional information at the regular, joint meeting of the Boards
of Commissioners on June 23, 2020 at 5pm.

Recommendation

This item is informational. No action is necessary.

Fiscal Impact

In the 2019-2020 agreement with the Fresno Police Department, Fresno Housing
agreed to reimburse the City of Fresno in an amount not to exceed $194,363. As
of June 1, 2020, FH has paid $149,297 to the police department. This expense was
included in the 2020 Agency Operating Budget.

There are also three limited partnership properties that pay a total of $114,149
for services from FPD, including Cedar Courts, Viking Village and Legacy
Commons. These expenses were included in the 2020 Mixed Finance Budgets,
which were approved by the Board of Directors of Silvercrest, Inc.

These contracts are within the signature authority designated to the
CEO/Executive Director; thus, no action by the Boards of Commissioners is
needed.

Background Information

Over the past 30 years, Fresno Housing and Fresno Police Department have
sustained their agreement to provide community policing, safety and resident
outreach to these areas of Fresno with positive feedback from the residents and
community members. However, in light of on-going community conversations
and the Agency’s ongoing work around diversity, equity and inclusion, Fresno
Housing is taking this opportunity to review relevant information and solicit

55



feedback from stakeholders, including our residents and partners, regarding resources and partnerships,
including future contractual relations with local law enforcement.

The original agreement between Fresno Housing and the Fresno Police Department was approved by the
Boards of Commissioners on May 24, 1989 as part of the Housing Authority’s “Evict Narcotics from Our
Public Housing” (ENOPH) program. The original intent of this contract was to provide resident safety,
drug elimination programs and outreach services in Southwest Fresno as the Yosemite Village property
and surrounding area was modernized. In November 1990, the contract was expanded to include Southeast
Fresno for the area surrounding the Cedar Courts property. These contracts were funded by the
Comprehensive Improvement Assistance Program (CIAP) until 1995, when the Agency applied for and
received a separate grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Public
Housing Drug Elimination Program (PHDEP). The Drug Elimination Program continued from 1995 until
2002, when HUD eliminated the program. Subsequently, the agreement with the Fresno Police Department
was funded by the Public Housing Capital Fund program until 2015, followed by Public Housing
Operating Subsidy and from Fresno Housing’s limited partnership developments.

56



VIBRANT

COMMUNITIES
QUALITY ENGAGED
HOUSING RESIDENTS
# #
Bo ARD TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
M E Mo Fresno Housing BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 6b
O (559) 443-8400 . . .
F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Emily De La Guerra
1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: 2019 Financial Results for Mixed Finance Properties

Fresno, California 93721
TTY (800) 735-2929

www.fresnohousing.org

Executive Summary

The purpose of this memo is to present the Boards of Commissioners with an
overview of the financial operating performance of the Mixed Finance portfolio
as of December 31, 2019.

As part of the real estate development process, staff routinely asks the Boards of
Commissioners to sponsor the development or rehabilitation of multi-family
housing properties. The Boards have approved 29 developments throughout
Fresno County that were included in the 2019 Budget. This group of properties
are referred to as the “Mixed Finance Properties” because several (“mixed”)
financing sources are used to acquire and construct the units. An attachment
provided with this memo shows the operating performance of all properties
included in the 2019 Budget.

As part of the “sponsorship” process, the Boards are asked to approve the
formation and creation of a limited partnership that will “own” the affordable
housing development, and Silvercrest, Inc. (a subsidiary of the Housing
Authority) is generally named as the managing general partner (MGP) of the
partnership.

One responsibility of the managing general partner is to review and approve the
annual operating budgets and financial performance for the partnerships.
However, because Fresno Housing was the original sponsor of these projects and
has a vested interest in the success of the properties, staff is presenting the 2019
annual financial performance to Fresno Housing’s Boards of Commissioners.
Subsequently, staff will ask Silvercrest Inc. to accept the financial results as the
managing general partner of the limited partnerships.

Mixed Finance Results

In 2019, the mixed finance properties operated better than budget, earning 5%
higher total income while operating costs remained in line with the budget.

57



Overall, revenues were $804 thousand better than budgeted, of which, $968 thousand is attributable to
additional Net Tenant Income. This additional income is a result of lower than budgeted vacancy rates at
most of the properties.

Total operating expenses are slightly higher than budgeted by approximately $25 thousand. The properties
spent an additional $122 thousand dollars on maintenance and repairs, due to the intentional decision to
continue to use our own staff for specific maintenance items, instead of using outside vendors. While this
decision has led to a slight increase in costs, it has also allowed the Agency to respond to maintenance
issues faster and turn units quicker, which shortens vacancy times and increases revenues. Staff continues
to monitor these expenses, as well as other maintenance costs, to ensure the properties can absorb these
increases without sacrificing in other areas. Other variances include taxes and insurance costs, which were
up about 5% due to insurance premium increases and property taxes that will be reimbursed in future
years. Non-operating expenses were $427 thousand over budget, largely due to one-time major repairs at
several properties.

Overall, net operating income was approximately $778 thousand over the original budget. Net Cash Flow
was $350 thousand more than originally budgeted. Below is a summary of the 2019 Mixed Finance portfolio
financial results.

2019 MIXED FINANCE BUDGET Budget Actual $ Variance % Variance
NET TENANT INCOME 15,559,912 16,527,660 967,748 6%
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 379,732 215,820 (163,912) -43%
TOTAL INCOME 15,939,644 16,743,480 803,836 5%
TOTAL PAYROLL EXPENSES 3,195,805 3,075,406 (120,399) -4%
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2,412,278 2,359,104 (53,174) -2%
TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 756,617 770,386 13,769 2%
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 2,049,062 2,070,046 20,984 1%
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 3,173,632 3,295,541 121,909 4%
TOTAL TAXES & INSURANCE EXPENSES 781,505 823,848 42,343 5%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,368,899 12,394,331 25,432 0%
NET OPERATING INCOME 3,570,745 4,349,149 778,404 22%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 1,919,568 2,347,450 427,882 22%
NET CASH FLOW 1,651,177 2,001,699 350,522 21%

Each property is managed as a separate and independent financial entity and, at the very least, should be
able to sustain itself and achieve positive net operating income. Beyond that, the major goals of the 2019
budgets were to:

— Leverage well-performing assets in order to provide maximum benefits to lenders, partners, and
stakeholders;
— Meet stabilization requirements for newer properties;

— Maintain and modernize properties, as needed; and

58



— Provide services to residents;

Staff has developed reporting mechanisms and key performance indicators to monitor property
performance, based on industry best practices. As part of the 2019 mixed finance budget process, staff
categorized each property as low, standard, or high performers using net operating income, per unit, as a key
indicator. Net operating income is used as the basis of measuring performance instead of net cash flow because
its shows the basic financial health of the properties and whether or not there is enough operating revenue
to cover operating expenses. Non-operating expenses, including capital improvements that will be paid
from reserves and distributions from accumulated cash flow, are often time non-recurring and
extraordinary expenses that reduce net cash flow, but are not indicative of the properties’ overall financial
stability.

Based on 2019 financial operating performance, twenty-five properties were identified as “high
performers” and four as “standard performers”. The “standard performing” properties are Yosemite
Village, Renaissance @ Parc Grove, Granada Commons and Renaissance @ Santa Clara. Other properties
that show a negative cash flow, include Renaissance at Alta Monte, Bridges at Florence, and City View @
Van Ness, however these were mainly due to cash flow distributions and replacement reserve-funded
expenses. Below is a summary of portfolio performance from 2017 to 2019.

2017 2018 2019 2019
Results Results Budget Results
High Performers 20 24 28 25
Standard Performers 3 1 1 +
Low Performers 0 0 0 0
Total 23 25 29 29

Staff will continue to monitor operations and develop action plans to improve property financial
performance.

2019 Cash Flow Distributions

The Agency and its affiliated entities (Housing Relinquished Fund Corporation and Silvercrest, Inc.)
receive annual cash flow distributions from various properties. These annual distributions (also called “the
waterfall”) vary by property and are based on annual operating performance and fees negotiated as part
of each partnership’s Limited Partnership Agreement. Of the $2 million in 2019 net cash flow, $1.72 million
will be distributed to Fresno Housing and its affiliates, which represents a $362 thousand increase from
2018. The remaining cash flow will be distributed to other investors and lenders.

59



Entity Amount, Type of Payment

HRFC 688,058 | Loan Payments

Silvercrest, Inc. 413,561 | Management Fees

Fresno Housing 620,416 | Developer Fee, Loan Payments
Total 1,722,035

Recommendation

This item is information only. No action is required from the Boards of Commissioners of Fresno Housing.
The Board of Directors for Silvercrest, Inc. will be asked to approve the 2019 Mixed Finance Results.

Background Information

The 2019 Mixed Finance Operating Budgets were approved by the Boards of Commissioners with revenues
of $15.9 million and operating and non-operating expenses totaling $14.3 million, resulting in total net
operating income of approximately $1.7 million.

60



Mixed Finance Properties
2019 Financial Results

Fresno Housing Authority
Boards of Commissioners Meeting
June 23, 2020

FRESNOVERNT

| HosneHOUSINGRSZ:




‘Mixed Finance’ Properties

* What are they?
— Properties owned by a limited partnership.
— Originally sponsored and developed by the Housing Authority.

— Mixed finance means that several funding sources were used to develop the
properties (examples: Tax Credits, HRFC, private mortgage, HOME funds, etc.).

« Why are we involved?

— Silvercrest, Inc. (an instrumentality of the HA) is the Managing General Partner of
the limited partnerships, and is responsible for the ongoing operations of the
partnership.

— The Agency and its subsidiaries (Silvercrest, HRFC) have a vested interest in the
properties.

— Properties fulfill the Agency’s mission to create and sustain affordable housing.

FRESNO HOUSING



Sample Ownership Structure — Marion Villas

Kingsburg Marion Villas, LP

L
| | | | 1
Si Inc. ingsbure Marion Vill
PNC Bank “ [mé’mer . R v
“Investor Limited Partner” Partner” "Admi_nistrativc”General
999, Partner
99. 0.005% 0.005%
|
Housing Authority of
Fresno County, CA
“Sole Member and Manager
of Administrative General
Partner”
100%

FRESNO HOUSING



Summary of Mixed Finance Properties

« Twenty-nine (29) properties were included in the 2019 Budgets (approx. 1,900 units)

* Villa Del Mar (2002) * City View @ Van Ness (2014)
* Elderberry (2004) * Viking Village RAD (2014)

* Yosemite Village (2008) * Marion Villas (2015)

* Parc Grove Commons Il (2010) * Fultonia/Cedar Heights (2016)
» Granada Commons (2010) * Paseo 55 (2017)

* Pacific Gardens (2011) * Legacy Commons | (2017)

* Renaissance at Trinity (2011) * Rio Villas (2017)

* Renaissance at Santa Clara (2011) * Cueva De Oso (2017)

* Renaissance at Alta Monte (2011) * Fenix @ Calaveras (2017)

* Bridges at Florence (2012) * Legacy Commons Il (2018)

» Parc Grove Commons NW (2012) * Renaissance at Parc Grove (2018)
* SE Fresno RAD (2013) * Blossom Trail (2018)

* Mendota RAD (2013) * Magill Terrace (2019)

* Orange Cove RAD (2013) * Oak Grove (2019)

* Kings River Commons (2014)

FRESNO HOUSING



2019 Budget Goals

» The major goals of the 2019 budgets were to:
— Achieve positive net operating income on all properties

— Leverage the well-performing assets in order to provide maximum benefits
to lenders, partners, and stakeholders

— Meet stabilization requirements for newer properties (2018-2019 deals)
— Maintain and modernize properties, as needed
— Provide services to residents

FRESNO HOUSING



Budgeting for Property Success

2017 2018 2019 2019
Results Results Budget Results
High Performers 20 24 28 25
Standard Performers 3 1 1 4
Low Performers 0 0 0 0
Total 23 25 29 29

- Each property is managed as a separate and independent financial entity.

« At the very least, each property should break even each year (Net Operating Income or
NOI should be >0).

— NOI vs Cash Flow

FRESNO HOUSING



2019 Resu

— NOI Per Unit

Property Name Units
Rio Villas 30
Parc Grove Northwest 148
Parc Grove Commons Il 215
Legacy Commons | 64
Mendota RAD 124
Oak Grove Commons 56
Marion Villas 46
Elderberry 75
Orange Cove RAD 90
Viking Village RAD 40
Fresno RAD 193
Renaissance at Trinity 20
Blossom Trail 48
City View @ Van Ness 45
Villa Del Mar 48
» Green = “High Performer”

* Yellow

NOI Per Unit

“Standard Performer”

Property Name Units | NOI Per Unit
Magnolia Commons 60

Fenix @ Calaveras & Fenix @ Glenn 30

Bridges at Florence 34

Legacy Commons Il 64

Paseo 55 55

541 @ South Tower & Cedar Heights 45

Renaissance at Alta Monte 30

Kings River Commons 60

Cueva de Oso 47

Pacific Gardens 56

Yosemite Village 69 808
Renaissance at Parc Grove 39 734
Granada Commons 16 604
Renaissance at Santa Clara 70 452
Total Mixed Finance 1,917 2,269




2019 Financial Results

2019 2019 $ %
MIXED FINANCE BUDGET Budget Results Variance Variance
Total Income 15,939,644 16,743,480 803,836 5%
Total Expenses 12,368,899 12,394,331 25,432 0%
Net Operating Income 3,570,745 4,349,149 778,404 22%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,919,568 2,347,450 427,882 22%
Net Cash Flow 1,651,177 2,001,699 350,522 21%

* Overall, 2019 Net Operating Income was better than budgeted

* Net cash flow is also higher than budgeted

FRESNO HOUSING



2019 Cash Flow Distributions

Entity Amount Type of Payment

HREC 688,058 ' Loan Payments

Silvercrest, Inc. 413,561 | Management Fees

Fresno Housing 620,416 = Developer Fee, Loan Payments
Total 1,722,035

« Atotal of $1.72 million was distributed to the Agency and its affiliated entities from various properties as
part of the annual cash flow distributions.

FRESNO HOUSING



Cash Distributions 2014-2019

2,500,000
2,238,331
2,000,000
1,759,047
1,722,035
1,500,000
1,000,000
551,101
500,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

s HRFC s Silvercrest  e====Fresno Housing e====Total

* Annual cash distributions have more than tripled from 2014 totals.

» Looking forward, the 2020 mixed finance budget includes an estimated $1 million in cash distributions.

FRESNO HOUSING



This item is informational for the Fresno Housing Boards of
Commissioners.

As the Managing General Partner, Silvercrest Inc., will be asked to accept
the 2019 Mixed Finance Results.

Questions or Comments?

FRESNO HOUSING



Fresno Housing Authority
2019 Mixed Finance Results

6/17/2020 11:38 AM

" o Parc Grove Granada Parc Grove at e at at Bridges at City View @ Van Orange Cove

(i LEE Ve A Northwest C C II Trinity Santa Clara Alta Monte Florence Ness AR D RAD

# of Units 69 148 16 215 20 70 30 34 45 124 90
INCOME

NET TENANT INCOME 667,905 1,530,208 143,414 2,156,850 199,416 649,792 280,948 247,097 337,185 1,192,566 824,147
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 3,732 5,466 1,367 10,730 291 31,521 30,067 -4,352 1,326 0 116
TOTAL INCOME 671,637 1,535,674 144,781 2,167,580 199,707 681,313 311,015 242,745 338,511 1,192,566 824,263
EXPENSES

TOTAL PAYROLL EXPENSES 185,016 246,919 22,915 388,772 50,756 168,780 58,621 40,217 57,112 213,440 143,186
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 83,989 149,635 29,189 181,980 33,140 84,897 44,255 39,384 75,886 163,562 122,308
TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 35,107 49,780 7,006 84,500 6,422 18,122 11,111 14,004 1,201 73,820 52,896
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 95,539 139,014 13,726 225,198 31,215 102,964 56,417 33,155 40,392 183,792 123,570
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 192,844 309,470 56,961 507,093 28,342 257,997 88,109 48,096 51,546 163,156 135,013
TOTAL TAXES & INSURANCE EXPENSES 23,388 36,870 5,327 44,538 6,967 16,917 10,308 13,459 28,144 38,209 42,266
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 615,883 931,688 135,124 1,432,081 156,842 649,677 268,821 188,315 254,281 835,979 619,239
NET OPERATING INCOME 55,754 603,986 9,657 735,499 42,865 31,636 42,194 54,430 84,230 356,587 205,024
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 39,550 469,080 18,696 394,096 19,177 68,242 68,916 90,081 87,538 229,622 59,743

CASH FLOW 16,204 134,906 -9,039 341,403 23,688 -36,606 -26,722 -35,651 -3,308 126,965 145,281
Page 1 of 3

72




Fresno Housing Authority
2019 Mixed Finance Results

6/17/2020 11:38 AM

Viking Village Legac SeaiSouth Kings River
Property Name Fresno RAD 9 9 Marion Villas Pacific Gardens egacy Tower & Cedar Rio Villas Paseo 55 Villa Del Mar Elderberry 9
RAD Commons I A Commons
Heights

# of Units 193 40 46 56 64 45 30 55 48 75 60
INCOME

NET TENANT INCOME 1,663,443 370,296 337,586 433,123 532,045 325,080 291,735 421,464 434,962 491,967 439,867
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,990 0 8,798 5,120 58,868 -7,416 13,496 1,025 542 350 0
TOTAL INCOME 1,665,433 370,296 346,384 438,243 590,913 317,664 305,231 422,489 435,504 492,317 439,867
EXPENSES

TOTAL PAYROLL EXPENSES 341,775 65,529 52,963 96,034 71,418 65,242 45,293 74,723 86,722 53,580 70,561
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 247,707 64,464 50,535 113,878 66,092 59,707 41,468 78,157 61,448 62,002 82,745
TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 79,904 18,400 18,155 14,078 23,588 16,604 12,500 21,674 16,225 2,236 21,000
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 201,399 36,126 56,751 49,682 55,758 41,800 18,537 56,068 54,731 66,740 68,932
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 294,808 78,935 39,939 90,218 129,099 46,661 27,546 67,218 107,951 114,191 55,197
TOTAL TAXES & INSURANCE EXPENSES 76,430 16,948 16,285 15,387 39,065 21,634 16,116 43,658 20,702 14,157 58,563
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,242,023 280,402 234,628 379,277 385,020 251,648 161,460 341,498 347,779 312,906 356,998
NET OPERATING INCOME 423,410 89,894 111,756 58,966 205,893 66,016 143,771 80,991 87,725 179,411 82,869
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 77,691 61,811 12,198 35,137 74,805 37,604 22,291 27,370 104,643 80,387 74,075

CASH FLOW 345,719 28,083 99,558 23,829 131,088 28,412 121,480 53,621 -16,918 99,024 8,794
Page 2 of 3

73




Fresno Housing Authority
2019 Mixed Finance Results

K@ Legac! Renaissance at Magnolia Oak Grove
Property Name Cueva de Oso Calaveras & egacy Blossom Trail 9 Total
a Commons II Parc Grove C C
Fenix @ Glenn

# of Units 47 30 64 39 48 60 56 1917
INCOME

NET TENANT INCOME 405,203 217,488 540,729 381,540 393,008 250,911 367,685 16,527,660
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 2,227 272 27,722 6,679 11,440 3,866 577 215,820
TOTAL INCOME 407,430 217,760 568,451 388,219 404,448 254,777 368,262 16,743,480
EXPENSES

TOTAL PAYROLL EXPENSES 68,767 39,362 105,814 68,462 59,143 46,353 87,931 3,075,406
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 76,158 41,155 92,984 68,993 74,722 34,213 34,451 2,359,104
TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 30,015 10,633 22,975 45,298 45,945 7,874 9,313 770,386
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 38,536 24,493 54,301 74,208 81,335 16,632 29,035 2,070,046
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 106,531 35,547 103,476 89,592 33,696 14,023 22,286 3,295,541
TOTAL TAXES & INSURANCE EXPENSES 28,032 15,840 87,275 13,059 19,419 30,052 24,833 823,848
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 348,039 167,030 466,825 359,612 314,260 149,147 207,849 12,394,331
NET OPERATING INCOME 59,391 50,730 101,626 28,607 90,188 105,630 160,413 4,349,149
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 28,570 41,775 22,995 50,181 14,675 18,507 17,994 2,347,450

CASH FLOW 30,821 8,955 78,631 -21,574 75,513 87,123 142,419 2,001,699
Page 3 of 3

6/17/2020 11:38 AM

74



BOARD
MEMO

O (559) 443-8400
F (559) 445-8981

1331 Fulton Street
Fresno, California 93721
TTY (800) 735-2929

www.fresnohousing.org

FRESNOYERN
foosncHOUSING

AUTHORIT

# #
TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 6¢
CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Michael Duarte

SUBJECT: Real Estate Development Update
#

ENGAGED

RESIDENTS

Executive Summary
Staff will present an update on projects in the development pipeline.

Recommendation

None at this time. Informational only.

75



FRESNOYEUAL
BeHOUSING
AUTHORITY&2

# #

Bo ARD TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020

M E M O Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 7a

O (559) 443-8400 . .

F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Scott Berry

1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: Authorization of Funding Application to the California Tax

Fresno, California 93721 Credit Allocation Committee- Mendota Farm Labor Apartments

TTY (800) 735-2929

www.fresnohousing.org

Executive Summary

The purpose of this Board memo is to request certain approvals from the Boards
of Commissioners related to the substantial rehabilitation of an existing
affordable housing property known as Mendota Farm Labor Apartments “The
Propety”. The subject Property is located at 241 Tuft Street, Mendota, California.
Staff is requesting authorization to apply for various potential funding sources,
notably a Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) application to the California
Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC). LIHTC financing will enable the
property to be repositioned and preserve the property and further secure its
continued affordability.

Mendota Farm Labor Apartments is an existing 60-unit farmworker, multifamily
low-income property on approximately 10.01 acres in Mendota, CA. The
property was initially developed by Fresno Housing Authority (FH) with
financial assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA).
USDA provided a loan and rental assistance and staff is working with USDA to
secure new financing commitments including a new rental assistance contract to
preserve the affordability of the property.

Staff is proposing to complete substantial rehabilitation of the existing 60-unit
complex, reconfiguring an existing community building on the property to
include a shared laundry facility, and to convert one of the units into an onsite
property manager’s unit.

As part of the next phase in the Mendota Farm Labor Apartments development
process, it is necessary for the Boards of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority to adopt the attached board resolution that will allow for a list of
significant actions to take place in order to facilitate the development. In order
to fully finance the project, it is necessary to submit a funding application to the
California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) for an allocation of 9%
Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC). The recommended actions in this
memo include the authorization to submit a funding application to CTCAC for
the Mendota Farm Labor Apartments project and approval to donate the value
of the existing land, improvements and project reserves. The current projections

76



anticipate a net land/building donation of approximately $2,450,000 (based on a preliminary appraisal of
$3,000,000 minus a reamortized USDA loan of approximately $550,000), plus project reserves of
approximately $700,000. Staff has requested an updated appraisal, as we have seen market prices closer to
$80,000/unit, and if favorable could increase the overall current value of the Project to potentially
$4,800,000. This would offer the opportunity for a larger donation value that would provide for a more
competitive CTCAC tiebreaker and/or sales proceeds back to FH; therefore staff is requesting that the Board
allow for a combined net donation of up to $3,750,000.

Fiscal Impact

The $2,000 CTCAC application fee and other due diligence is budgeted from the current approved
predevelopment budget. Predevelopment financing would be necessary until the close of
construction/permanent financing should the TCAC application be successful. All predevelopment funds
would be fully reimbursed once the construction/permanent financing close occurs.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Boards of Commissioners of the Fresno Housing Authority adopt the attached
resolutions approving the necessary actions needed to move forward with funding application submissions
for the Mendota Farm Labor Apartments projecat (APN 012-190-39-S), and authorize Preston Prince,
CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive Director, and/or their designee, to
negotiate and execute documents in connection with the approved actions.

1. Authorize approval of a donation of land, buildings and/or available project reserves from the
Housing Authority of Fresno County to Silvercrest, Inc. as Managing General Partner of the to-be-
formed-limited partnership for the benefit of redeveloping the Mendota Farm Labor Apartments
for a donation value (net of the re-amortized USDA loan) of up to $3,750,000.

2. Authorize the Housing Authority of Fresno County to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
with Silvercrest, Inc. to co-develop the project.

3. Authorize the Housing Authority of Fresno County to enter into a Partnership Agreement with
Silvercrest, Inc., wherein the Authority would act as the Administrative General Partner (AGP)
and Silvercrest, Inc. would act as the Managing General Partner (MGP); and to execute such
documents as are necessary for such purposes.

4. Authorize the undertaking of all actions necessary to secure financing for the Project, and assemble
various financing sources, which may include, but are not limited to: (a) submission of an
application to the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (b) submission of an application for
California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) funding, (d) submission of an Affordable Housing
Program (AHP) application to the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco, (e) submission of an
application for County of Fresno HOME funds, and (f) other grants, operating subsidies and/or
private loans and such other sources identified by the CEO/Executive Director.

5. Authorize Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive
Director, and their designees to execute documents on behalf of the Housing Authority of Fresno
County, CA; and in the name of the Administrative General Partner, on its own behalf; and as
administrative general partner of the Partnership; and

6. Provide for other matters related thereto.

77



Background

The Housing Authority of Fresno County proposes to substantially rehabilitate the Mendota Farm Labor
Apartments, which is located at 241 Tuft Street, Mendota, CA, 93640. The project will include the
preservation/rehabilitation of 60 existing units, with one affordable unit being converted to an onsite
manager’s unit. The development will also contain a community building where a shared laundry facility
will be located, and will share access to a community building with Mendota RAD, which is another
affordable multifamily housing development managed by the Fresno Housing Authority. The target
population is the existing farm labor population and future families/residents of Fresno County who are
income qualified, and 21 of the 60 units will continue to receive rental assistance from USDA.

Attachments:  Exhibit A — Organizational Chart
Exhibit B — Development Pro Forma
Exhibit C — Operating Budget
Exhibit D — 15-Year Projections
Exhibid E — Site Plan

78



RESOLUTION NO.
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF FRESNO COUNTY, CA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A 9% LOW INCOME HOUSING
TAX CREDIT (“LIHTC”) APPLICATION AND OTHER VARIOUS FINANCING SOURCES
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF MENDOTA FARM LABOR APARTMENTS, 60
UNITS OF AFFORDABLE MULTIFAMILY HOUSING LOCATED AT 241 TUFT
STREET, MENDOTA, CA 93640 (APN’s 012-190-39-S)

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Fresno County, CA (“the Authority”) seeks to expand
the development and availability of long-term housing for low and moderate income households

residing in the County of Fresno, California; and,

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized, among other things, to enter into partnership
agreements and to make loans to partnerships to finance, plan, undertake, construct, acquire and

operate housing projects; and,

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to facilitate the redevelopment of real property located
at 241 Tuft Street, Mendota CA, 93640 (APN 012-190-39-S), and the improvements located

thereon into a 60-unit apartment complex (collectively, the Property); and,

WHEREAS, the project’s financing structure calls for the submission of a 9% LIHTC
application to facilitate the development;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority of Fresno County, CA hereby authorizes Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director,
Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive Director, and/or their designee, to negotiate and execute

documents in connection with the approved actions.

1. Authorize approval of a donation of the land, buildings and/or available project reserves
from the Housing Authority of Fresno County to a to-be-formed Limited Partnership for
the benefit of redeveloping the Mendota Farm Labor Apartments property for a net value
of up to $3,750,000.

2. Authorize approval for the Housing Authority of Fresno County to re-amortize the
existing USDA 514 loan in the amount of $550,278 for a new 33-year maximum term and

concurrently enter into a new rental assistance contract for 21 units.

79



3. Authorize the Housing Authority of Fresno County to enter into a Partnership Agreement
with Silvercrest, Inc., wherein the Authority would act as the Administrative General
Partner (AGP) and Silvercrest, Inc. would act as the Managing General Partner (MGP);
and to execute such documents as are necessary for such purpose

4. Authorize the undertaking of all actions necessary to develop the Project, and assemble
various financing sources, which may include, but are not limited to: (a) submission of an
application for 9% LIHTC equity, (b) submission of an Affordable Housing Program
(AHP) application to the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco, (c) submission of an
application for County of Fresno HOME funds, and (d) grants, operating subsidies and/or
private loans and such other sources identified by the CEO/Executive Director.

5. Authorize Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy
Executive Director, and their designees to execute documents on behalf of the Housing
Authority of Fresno County, CA; and in the name of the Administrative General Partner,
on its own behalf; and as administrative general partner of the Partnership; and

6. Provide for other matters related thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 23t DAY OF JUNE 2020. I, the undersigned, hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the

following vote, to-wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Boards of Commissioners

80



Ownership Structure
MENDOTA FARM LABOR APARTMENT'S

to-be-formed Mendota Farm Labor Limited Partnership
the “Partnership”

1<€Zr Ibne { Zilr) ”;fil\éle)r’lii% r Silvercrest, Inc. TBD
B R — | “Managing General “Investor Limited
P Partner” Partner”
o 0.005% 99.99%
'Housing Authority of the
Fresno County, CA
“Sole Member”

100%

81



A
A

A N N E
A R C H

PHILLIPS
NO1° 36' 56"E 1,222.54' | TECTURE

</7 _______________________ (E_)TRASH _______ /- o /A .
\ ENCLOSURE / / / 3032 MAGNOLIA STREET

| OAKLAND CA 94608
/ tr 51 0 .84 1.7 05 6
(N) HVIUNIT / / (E) TRASH | WWWwW . aparch. com
o1 / ; /o / ENCLOSURE
/ (N)ACS&?I-SIBLE
e / 71/ =~/ / 2oe0 BLDG+ (N) ACCESSIBLE
BLDG 3 ; ‘RMMUNITY / / X S 4UNITS PARKING.TYP |
suNTS Q /) BLDG / / 5 5 W 250 SEE 5/T4.01 FOR |
BLDG 1 BLDG 2 3BED = — <~ / BLDG 5 7( Y ADA STANDARD
4 UNITS 4 UNITS g TONTS \ %
4BED 3BED / ¢ & \/ p— / / . N &
R Q / R 7L /) (14 ]G S 4
T ~ 'SV | 3
S I g & S 7 |
\ ~ ~ \ (N)ACSE?I_SIBLE / ! - § o |
h = 1-5 I 3BED / & L
AN ~ < — 4 v y ’
N = / S ® ’94/4 \ T N / (N) WALKING / / // BLDG 7
~ v ¥ 00 - = ; PATH, 4'-0" / / 4UNITS
= / S O \ / 2-282-38
SO/? b o, 7/ (N)ACCESSIBLE = ; — ;- - ¢0 Y \ WMIN. / |
o - UNIT . N = .
N (E) TRASH ENSEN4 8 PG s N\ = KP J 1% zNZ)OSI\LAééE ‘
AN ENCLOSURE N I/E 4 X‘ N J (N)ACL(JZE"?‘I_SIBLE _
R /. ] — ) f TYP 2 (D
L. e 9 /i 3 >
. BLDG 14 / eyl R hd
- / 4UNITS [¥ & / (N) HVIUNIT =
/2 2-282-38 / I \\ .5 AN / | < —
7)} ~ _ / BLDG 13 b e 3 I AN/ / :__ w
> _ 4 UNITS (N)ACCESSIBLE l = / | S
S, / UNIT Q. S >
76\{"(\ </ __ 1BED 28ED ,i* ‘;‘\/§- & 1 :‘3 :
) < / $ TR 102 2
D, BLDG 12 S — O
N 4UNITS / P S
228238 / / 2 /1 N NSNS | I
| 7 / WL ) B U | v =
N & SN 4BED *
) (E) TRASH o I 74 e A0 O E &
4UNITS D/ PEHY TN
\ ENCLOSURE 2BED S N, / LLl 8
e A BLDG 8 3-1 m n'd
\ ~ N 00050520500 OOZ OZO ' / ZUNITS TYP | < F <
AN T~ O/_)\ / A * ;/ Q 4BED | m 0
RS / A % 3.5 - n
= / X -
- » o 2 S T
. v 4 / ~ / =
N </ _ '?/VAUDO " p SN / & (N) PLAYGROUND| Y - 8
\ N - DR / / ‘E - N 32 )TYP | < ) u
N < BLDG 10 q. Z
N 205 11 ~ 4UNITS % 2-1 )TYP ‘ m N LLl
4 UNITS Nons < 2BED
286D < 24,54"5 / BLDG 9 3-3 < =
N 262,03,\ / / 4UNITS | h
MATERIALS LEGEND AND NOTES h , JBED | O
SITE KEYNOTES N /. ‘ 0O
N i = o
h §’ / 4 ~ '
PAVING, EDGING /N & / ’ ~ < & 5 N13% 057 | <
‘ N S o I
11 BASKETBALL COURT CONCRETE £ 5 /e ~ < o (N) BASKETBALL T =>
» %) $ J S COURT o= \l
POURED IN PLACE RUBBER SURFACING oy / £ / .
1-2 PLAYGROUND SURFACE EXTENDS 6' MIN BEYOND EQUIPMENT COMPLY N / & & -
W/ CPSC FALL ZONE REQUIREMENT N / /\54 N / -
1-3 SLOPE / WALKING PATH CONCRETE S T TYP 07.01.2020 TCAC
] OFF-LOAD FOR (N)
-4 ACCESSIBLE PARKING PAINT 33 )TYP
1-5 CROSSWALK PAINT
PLANTING AREAS PLAN NORTH
1 SITE PLAN
2-1 @ (N) TREE QUERCUS LOBATA (VALLEY OAK) 182=10"
2-2 -
|
SITE FURNISHINGS
3-1 m}%{m ACCESSIBLE PICNIC TABLE | DUMORMO:76-33PL, SURFACE
MOUNT
3-2 = BENCH WITH BACKREST MMCITE MO: LV 150 SYMBOLS LEGEND PROPOSED
3-3 = TRASH/RECYCLING BIN MMCITE MO: CRYSTAL- CP110 BLDG A BLDG NAME S ITE PLAN
NUMBERS OF UNIT
9 SIKE RACK MADRACK ORION. SQUARE 20 INITS UMBERS OF U
TUBE. SURFACE MOUNT
=7 SHADE STRUCTURE W/ MTL | SHADE COMFORTS: SHADE SAIL
3 L\ '\ POSTS 4-POINT, HYDAR STRUCTURE ) ACCESSIBLE PATH OF TRAVEL
(N) ADA UNIT DATE:
CHECKED BY:
(N) HVIUNIT JOB: 20-05
PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT
EVOS INCL. 'WOBBLE POD!, A ] . O ]
4-1 PLAYGROUND 'POWER LIFTER, E-POD'




EXHIBIT C

Mendota Farm Labor Apartments Pro Forma

Development Sources and Uses

Sources of Funds
Conventional Perm Loan
USDA 514 Recast Loan
Project Reserves
Donated Land & Building
LIHTC Equity

Total Sources of Funds

Amount
6/17/20
S 1,438,000
S 550,278
S 702,978
S 2,449,722
$ 10,707,246
$ 15,848,224

Uses of Funds Amount

Acquisition Costs (Land/Building) S 3,000,000
Construction Costs S 7,197,500
Hard/Soft Cost Contingencies S 904,360
Permits/Impact Fees/etc. S 45,000
Professional Fees S 496,100
Relocation S 900,000
Loan Fees and other Soft Costs S 1,071,250
Reserves S 706,461
Developer Fee S 1,527,553
Total Uses of Funds $ 15,848,224

*Draft as of 06/17/2020

83



Exhibit D

Mendota Farm Labor Apartments Pro Forma
Projected Stabilized Operating Budget

Net Rent | Ann. Rent
Unit Type # Units| % AMI| SF/Unit | Per Unit Total

1 Bed Unit 1 30% 635 $ 350 4,200
1 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 2 30% 635 $ 350(Ss 8,400
2 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 5 30% 830 $ 403|S 24,180
3 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 6 30% 1021 $ 463|S 33,336
4 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 2 30% 1282 $ 499|Ss 11,976
1 Bed Unit 1 40% 635 $ 481|S 5,772
2 Bed Unit 2 40% 830 $ 561|$ 13,464
3 Bed Unit 3 40% 1021 $ o644|S 23,184
1 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 2 40% 635 $ 481(S 11,544
2 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 1 40% 830 $ 561|S 6,732
3 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 1 40% 1021 $ o644|S 7,728
4 Bed Unit *Subsidized* 2 40% 1282 $ 701|S 16,824
2 Bed Unit 3 50% 830 $ 718(s 25,848
3 Bed Unit 2 50% 1021 $ 826|S 19,824
4 Bed Unit 1 50% 1282 $ 9045 10,848
1 Bed Unit 1 60% 635 $ 481|S 5,772
2 Bed Unit 8 60% 830 $ 718(s 68,928
3 Bed Unit 3 60% 1021 $ 826|S 29,736
4 Bed Unit 2 60% 1282 $ 9045 21,696
1 Bed Unit 1 70% 635 $ 481|S 5,772
2 Bed Unit 1 70% 830 $ 718(s 8,616
3 Bed Unit 2 70% 1021 $ 826|S 19,824
2 Bed Unit 2 80% 830 $ 718(s 17,232
3 Bed Unit 4 80% 1021 $ 826|S 39,648
4 Bed Unit 1 80% 1282 $ 9045 10,848
3 Bed Unit (Manager's Unit) 1 N/A 1021 S - S -

USDA Rental Subsidy S 135,010
TOTAL REVENUE 60 S 586,942
RESIDENTIAL OPERATING EXPENSES Per Unit TOTAL

Management Fee 840 50,400
Advertising/Marketing 8 500
Legal and Accounting 183 11,000
Utilities (water, trash, electricity, gas, etc.) 1,053 63,153
Payroll: Onsite Manager(s)/Staff 1,692 101,536
Maintenance/Repairs 1,643 98,552
Real Estate Property Tax 0 0
Insurance 378 22,675
Services Amenities 393 23,600
Office Expense/Misc. Admin. 587 35,230
Total Operating Expenses 6,777 406,646
Replacement Reserves 300 18,000
Total Operating and Reserve Budget 7,077 424,646

84



Exhibit E

Mendota Farm Labor Apartments Pro Forma

RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT - 15 YEAR CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

INCOME FROM HOUSING UNITS Inflation Year1 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year?7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15
Schedule Rental Income 25% S 451,932 $ 463,230 S 474,811 $486,681 $498,848 $511,320 $524,103 $537,205 $550,635 $564,401 $578,511 $592,974 $607,798 $622,993 $638,568
USDA Rental Subsidy $ 135010 $ 138,385 $ 141,845 $145391 $149,026 $152,751 $156,570 $160,484 $164,497 $168,609 $172,824 $177,145 $181,573 $186,113 $ 190,766
Misc. Income $ - $ - S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
GROSS POTENTIAL INCOME - HOUSING $ 586,942 $ 601,616 $ 616,656 $632,072 $647,874 $664,071 $680,673 $697,690 $715,132 $733,010 $751,335 $770,119 $789,372 $809,106 $ 829,334
Vacancy Loss 5.0% S (22,597) $  (23,162) S (23,741) $ (24,334) $ (24,942) S (25,566) S (26,205) $ (26,860) $ (27,532) $ (28,220) $ (28,926) S (29,649) S (30,390) $ (31,150) $ (31,928)
USDA Vacancy 50% $  (6,751) $ (6,919) $  (7,092) $ (7,270) $ (7,451) $ (7,638) S (7,829) S (8,024) $ (8,225) $ (8,430) $ (8,641) $ (8857) $ (9,079) S (9,306) $ (9,538)
TOTAL VACANCY LOSS $ (29,347) $ (30,081) $ (30,833) $ (31,604) $ (32,394) $ (33,204) $ (34,034) $ (34,884) $ (35,757) $ (36,651) $ (37,567) $ (38,506) $ (39,469) $ (40,455) $ (41,467)
EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME $ 557,595 $ 571,535 $ 585,823 $600,469 $615480 $630,867 $646,639 $662,805 $679,375 $696,360 $713,769 $731,613 $749,903 $768,651 $ 787,867
Operating Expenses 3.5% S 406,646 $ 420,879 S 435,609 $450,856 $466,636 $482,968 $499,872 $517,367 $535,475 $554,217 $573,614 $593,691 $614,470 $635976 658,236
Replacement Reserve 0.0% $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 S 18,000 S 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000
TOTAL EXPENSES & RESERVES $ 424,646 $ 438,879 $ 453,609 $468,856 $484,636 $500,968 $517,872 $535,367 $553,475 $572,217 $591,614 $611,691 $632,470 $653,976 $ 676,236
NET OPERATING INCOME $ 132,949 $ 132,656 $ 132,214 $131,613 $130,845 $129,900 $128,767 $127,438 $125,900 $124,143 $122,154 $119,922 $117,433 $114,674 $111,631
Tranch A Loan $ 108,241 $ 108,241 $ 108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $108,241 $ 108,241
USDA 514 Recast Loan $ 21,239 S 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 ¢ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 $ 21,239 S 21,239
Total Required Debt Service $ 129,480 $ 129,480 $ 129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $129,480 $ 129,480
Net Cash Flow $ 3,469 $ 3,176 $ 2,734 $ 2,133 $ 1,365 $ 420 $ (713) $ (2,042) $ (3,580) $ (5,337) $ (7,326) $ (9,558) $ (12,047) $ (14,806) $ (17,849)
1.03 1.02 1.02 1.02 1.01 1.00 0.99 0.98 0.97 0.96 0.94 0.93 0.91 0.89 0.86



FRESNOYEUAL
BeHOUSING
AUTHORITY&2

# #
Bo ARD TO: Boards of Commissioners DATE: June 19, 2020
M E M O Fresno Housing Authority BOARD MEETING: June 23, 2020
FROM: Preston Prince AGENDA ITEM: 7b
O (559) 443-8400 . . . ~
F (559) 445-8981 CEO/Executive Director AUTHOR: Francisco Nufiez
1331 Fulton Street SUBJECT: Authorization of Funding Applications for the Blackstone &
Fresno, California 93721 Simpson Project and Request for Funding Commitment

TTY (800) 735-2929

www.fresnohousing.org

Executive Summary

The purpose of this Board memo is to request certain approvals from the Board
of Commissioners related to the development of an affordable housing property
being contemplated at 3039 N. Blackstone Avenue, Fresno, CA (APNs: 443-104-
08, 443-104-09, 443-104-10, & 443-104-23). The requested action includes
authorization of funding applications, which will include the submission of a
Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) application to the California Tax
Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) and a Fresno Housing Authority (FH)
Capital Funds loan commitment.

As part of an effort to secure Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) financing
for the development of the Blackstone and Simpson project, FH is requesting
Board approval for the submission of a 9% LIHTC application to CTCAC. In
additon to the LIHTC application submission, staff is also recommending a
funding commitment from FH of up to $3,000,000 of available Capital Funds to
the proposed development.

At the January 22, 2019 meeting, the Board authorized entering into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Fresno Department of
Behavioral Health, (DBH) to collaborate on the development of permanent
supportive housing for Fresno County residents. At the December 17, 2019
Board meeting, the Boards approved the submission of an application for the
Blackstone and Simpson development for competitive funding to the No Place
Like Home Program (NPLH) administered by the State of California Housing
and Community Development Department (HCD). The County of Fresno
Department of Behavioral Heatlh (DBH) served as the lead applicant and service
provider, and FH’s role is the development sponsor and project owner/borrower.
Subsequently, the project has been successful in securing a funding award
totaling $5,450,087 from the competitive NPLH program.

In order to fully finance the project, it is necessary to submit a funding
application to the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) for an
allocation of 9% Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC). Staff has been
working with design teams as well as service providers to ensure the project has

86



the necessary approvals to submit the funding application. The recommended action in this memo is to
authorize the submission of a funding application to CTCAC for the Blackstone and Simpson project and
to commit FH Capital Funds to the project along with other related actions.

Fiscal Impact

Staff is requesting an increase to the overall Fresno Housing Authority commitment from $2,000,000 to up
to $3,000,000. The current financing proposal allows for the use of Capital Funds, which is a more
restrictive source of funds, and is beneficial for the agency. Staff is recommending a substitution of Capital
Funds to supplant the HRFC commitment for construction/permanent financing. A $2,000 CTCAC
application fee and other due diligence costs are budgeted from the current approved predevelopment
budget. The current approved predevelopment financing from the Housing Relinquished Fund
Corporation would be utilized to fund due diligence activities until finance closing should the CTCAC
application be successful. The predevelopment funds would be fully reimbursed upon finance closing by
Capital Funds and other construction sources.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Fresno Housing Authority adopt the attached
resolution approving the necessary actions needed to move forward with funding application submissions
for the Blackstone and Simpson project (APN 443-104-08, 443-104-09, 443-104-10, & 443-104-23), and
authorize Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive Director, and/or
their designee, to negotiate and execute documents in connection with the approved actions.

1. Authorize the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding with Silvercrest, Inc. to co-develop the project.

2. Authorize the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno to enter into a Limited Partnership
Agreement with Silvercrest, Inc., wherein the Authority would act as the Administrative General
Partner (AGP) and Silvercrest, Inc. would act as the Managing General Partner (MGP); and to
execute such documents as are necessary for such purposes.

3. Authorize approval of a funding commitment from the Fresno Housing Authority Capital Fund in
an amount up to $3,000,000 for the development of the Blackstone and Simpson project. The most
recent development pro forma (Exhibit B), detailed operating budget (Exhibit C) and 15-Year
projections (Exhibit D) are attached.

4. Authorize the undertaking of all actions necessary to secure financing for the Project, and assemble
various financing sources, which may include, but are not limited to: (a) submission of an
application to the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (b) submission of a funding request
to the County of Fresno Department of Behavioral Health (c) submission of an application for
California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) funding, (d) submission of an Affordable Housing
Program (AHP) application to the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco, (e) submission of an
application for City of Fresno HOME funds, and (f) other grants, operating subsidies and/or private
loans and such other sources identified by the CEO/Executive Director.

5. Authorize Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive
Director, and their designees to negotiate execute documents on behalf of the Housing Authority
of the City of Fresno, CA; and in the name of the Administrative General Partner, on its own behalf;
and as administrative general partner of the Partnership; and

6. Provide for other matters related thereto.

87



#

Background

The Blackstone & Simpson site (APNs: 443-104-08 thru 443-104-10, & 443-104-23) is an existing
commercial/retail site along the Blackstone corridor in close proximity to Manchester Transit Center on

approximately 0.83 acres in Fresno, CA. The project site is located in an area of high demand. The property
was acquired by the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California in November 2017 for $1,142,000.
The current site plan envisions a 41-unit community with approximately 3,800 square feet of community

space and approximately 4,200 square feet of renovated commercial space. The community would serve

both families (one-, two-, and three- bedroom units) and a transitional aged youth population (studios and

one-bedroom units) in partnership with the County of Fresno DBH.

Past Board Actions

March 21, 2017 — Approval Authorizing Assignment of Purchase & Sale Agreement

June 27, 2017 — Approval of Site Acquisition and HRFC Funding

December 19, 2017 — Approval of Increased HRFC Commitment & Submission of Grant Funding
Applications

January 23, 2018 — Approval of GCCM Contract Award

December 17, 2019 — Approval to Submit Funding Application to the No Place Like Home Program
December 17, 2019 — Approval of Allocation of Twenty (20) Project-Based Vouchers

January 22, 2020 — Approval to Submit Funding Application to the Infill Infrastructure Grant (IIG)

Program

Attachments:  Exhibit A — Organizational Chart

Exhibit B — Development Pro Forma
Exhibit C — Operating Budget
Exhibit D - 15-Year Projections
Exhibid E - Site Plan

88



RESOLUTION NO.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF CITY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF FUNDING APPLICATIONS FOR
THE BLACKSTONE AND SIMPSON PROJECT (APN: 443-104-08, 443-104-09, 443-104-10, &
443-104-23), CAPITAL FUND COMMITMENT AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED
THERETO

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, California (“the Authority”) seeks
to expand the development and availability of long-term housing for low and moderate income

households residing in City of Fresno, California (“the County”); and,

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized, among other things, to enter into limited
partnership agreements and to make loans to partnerships to finance, plan, undertake, construct,

acquire and operate housing projects; and,

WHEREAS, the Blackstone and Simpson site located at 3039 N. Blackstone Avenue, Fresno,
CA (APNSs: 443-104-08, 443-104-09, 443-104-10, & 443-104-23) is located in an area with high
demand for housing and is generally in line with the Authority’s housing and development goals;
and,

WHEREAS, a project concept and architectural plan envisions up to 40 low income units, 1
manager’s unit and approximately 5,000 square feet of community and office space and

approximately 3,000 square feet of commercial space; and,

WHEREAS, the Blackstone and Simpson development was successful in receiving a No
Place Like Home Program (NPLH) funding allocation of $5,450,087 from the State of California
Housing and Community Development Department (HCD); and,

WHERAS, the Authority desires to commit available Low Income Public Housing Capital
Funds (“Capital Funds”) in an amount up to $3,000,000 to the Blackstone and Simpson project;

and

WHEREAS, the project’s financing structure calls for the submission of a 9% LIHTC
application to facilitate the development;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing
Authority of City of Fresno, CA hereby authorizes Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director,
Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Executive Director, and/or their designee, to undertake the

89



following actions needed to move forward with funding application submissions for the
Blackstone and Simpson project:

1.

Authorize the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno, CA to enter into a Limited
Partnership Agreement with Silvercrest, Inc., wherein the Authority would act as the
Administrative General Partner (AGP) and Silvercrest, Inc. would act as the Managing
General Partner (MGP); and to execute such documents as are necessary for such purpose.
Authorize approval of a funding commitment from the Fresno Housing Authority Capital
Fund in an amount up to $3,000,000 for the development of the Blackstone and Simpson
project.

Authorize the undertaking of all actions necessary to secure financing for the Project, and
assemble various financing sources, which may include, but are not limited to: (a)
submission of an application to the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (b)
submission of a funding request to the County of Fresno Department of Behavioral Health
(c) submission of an application for California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA)
funding, (d) submission of an Affordable Housing Program (AHP) application to the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco, (e) submission of an application for City of
Fresno HOME funds, and (f) other grants, operating subsidies and/or private loans and
such other sources identified by the CEO/Executive Director.

Authorize Preston Prince, the CEO/Executive Director, Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy
Executive Director, and their designees to execute documents on behalf of the Housing
Authority of the City of Fresno, CA; and in the name of the Administrative General
Partner, on its own behalf; and as administrative general partner of the Partnership; and

Provide for other matters related thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 23t DAY OF JUNE, 2020. I, the undersigned, herby

certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the governing body with the following

vote, to-wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Preston Prince, Secretary of the Boards of Commissioners

90



Ownership Structure
BLACKSTONE & SIMPSON

to be formed Blackstone & Simpson Limited Partnership
the “Partnership”

Blackstone & Simpson .
AGP. LLC P Silvercrest, Inc. TBD

€A dministra,tive General “Managing G”eneral “Investor Limited

P . Partner Partner”
anmer 0.005 99.99
0.005% Wb 9%
Housing Authority of the|
City of Fresno, CA
“Sole Member”

100%

91



EXHIBIT B
Blackstone and Simpson Pro Forma

Development Sources and Uses

Amount

Sources of Funds 6/18/2020
No Place Like Home (NPLH) Loan S 3,499,685
NPLH COSR S 1,950,402
Deferred Developer Fee S 900,000
Fresno HA Capital Funds S 3,000,000
Accrued Deferred Interest - FHA Loan S 87,041
General Partner Equity S 100
LIHTC Equity $ 15,802,364
Total Sources of Funds $ 25,239,592
Uses of Funds Amount
Acquisition Costs S 1,142,000
Construction Costs S 15,080,000
Contingencies S 879,655
Permits/Impact Fees/etc. S 437,526
Professional Fees S 1,323,500
Relocation S 40,000
Interest/Loan Fees/Soft Costs S 1,584,761
Reserves S 2,552,150
Developer Fee S 2,200,000
Total Uses of Funds S 25,239,592




Exhibit C

Blackstone and Simpson Residential Component
Projected Stabilized Operating Budget

Net Rent | Ann. Rent
Unit Type # Units| % AMI| SF/Unit Per Unit Total

0 BR / 1BA (Studio) 15 30% 375 367 S 66,060
1BR/1BA 5 30% 644 393 S 23,580
2 BR/1BA 1 30% 868 390 S 4,680
3BR/2BA 1 30% 1300 441 S 5,292
2BR/1BA 2 40% 868 548 S 13,152
3BR/2BA 2 40% 1300 622 S 14,928
1BR/1BA 7 50% 644 560 S 47,040
2BR/1BA 3 50% 868 705 S 25,380
2BR/1BA 2 60% 868 738 S 17,712
3BA/2BA 2 60% 1300 986 S 23,664
2Bd/1Bath**Managers Unit 1 S -

PBV Rental Subsidy S 95,160
PBRA Rental Subsidy S 32,280
Year 1 Draw on COSR Reserve S 36,904
Misc. Income S 4,160
TOTAL REVENUE 41 $ 409,992
RESIDENTIAL OPERATING EXPENSES Per Unit TOTAL

Management Fee 790 32,400
Advertising/Marketing 12 500
Legal and Accounting 427 17,500
Utilities (water, trash, electricity, gas, etc.) 1,000 41,000
Payroll: Onsite Manager(s)/Staff 2,893 118,622
Maintenance/Repairs 1,634 67,000
Real Estate Property Tax 122 5,000
Insurance 488 20,000
Services Amenities 390 16,000
Security Alarm 332 13,620
Office Expense/Misc. Admin. 323 13,240
Total Operating Expenses 8,412 344,882
Replacement Reserves 600 24,600
Total Operating and Reserve Budget 9,012 369,482




Exhibit D

BLACKSTONE AND SIMPSON RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT - 15 YEAR CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

INCOME FROM HOUSING UNITS Inflation Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15
Schedule Rental Income 2.5% S 241,488 S 247,525 $ 253,713 S 260,056 $ 266,558 $ 273,222 $ 280,052 $ 287,053 $ 294,230 $ 301,585 $ 309,125 S 316,853 S 324,775 S 332,894 S 341,216
DRAW from COSR Reserve S 36904 S 36904 S 41,403 S 81691 S 48997 S 53,133 S 57,507 S 62,132 S 67,019 S 72,178 S 77,623 S 83,365 S 89,418 S 95795 $ 102,511
PBV Rental Subsidy S 95160 S 97,539 S 99,977 $ 102,477 $ 105,039 $ 107,665 $ 110,356 $ 113,115 $ 115943 $ 118,842 $ 121,813 $ 124,858 $ 127,980 $ 131,179 $ 134,459
PBVRA Rental Subsidy S 32,280 S 33,087 S 33914 S 34,762 S 35631 S 36522 S 37,435 S 38371 S 39330 S 40,313 S 41,321 S 42,354 S 43,413 S 44,498 S 45611
Misc. Income S 4160 S 4264 S 4371 S 4,480 S 4592 S 4707 S 4824 S 4945 S 5069 S 5195 S 5325 S 5458 S 5595 $§ 5735 S 5,878
GROSS POTENTIAL INCOME - HOUSING $ 409,992 $ 419,319 S 433,379 $ 483,466 S 460,816 $ 475,248 $ 490,175 $ 505,616 $ 521,591 $ 538,114 $ 555,207 $ 572,889 $ 591,180 $ 610,101 $ 629,675

VACANCY ASSUMPTIONS

Vacancy Loss -5.0% $ (18,446) $ (18,908) $ (19,380) $ (19,865) $ (20,361) $ (20,870) $ (21,392) $ (21,927) $ (22,475) $ (23,037) $ (23,613) $ (24,203) $ (24,808) $ (25,429) $ (26,064)
TOTAL VACANCY LOSS $ (18,446) $ (18,908) $ (19,380) $ (19,865) $ (20,361) $ (20,870) $ (21,392) $ (21,927) $ (22,475) $ (23,037) $ (23,613) $ (24,203) $ (24,808) $ (25,429) $ (26,064)
EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME $ 391,546 $ 400,412 $ 413,998 $ 463,601 $ 440,455 $ 454,377 $ 468,783 $ 483,689 $ 499,115 $ 515,077 $ 531,594 $ 548,686 $ 566,372 $ 584,672 $ 603,610
OPERATING EXPENSES & RESERVE DEPOSITS

Operating Expenses 3.5% $ 339,882 $ 351,778 $ 364,090 $ 376,833 $ 390,022 S 403,673 $ 417,802 $ 432,425 $ 447,560 S 463,224 $ 479,437 $ 496,217 $ 513,585 $ 531,561 $ 550,165
Real Estate Taxes 25% $ 5000 $ 5125 $ 5253 S 538 $ 5519 $ 5657 $ 5798 $ 5943 $ 6092 $ 6244 S 6400 $ 6560 S 6724 $ 6893 S 7,065
Replacement Reserve $ 24600 $ 24,600 S 24,600 $ 24,600 S 24,600 $ 24,600 S 24,600 $ 24,600 S 24600 $ 24600 S 24,600 $ 24600 $ 24,600 $ 24,600 $ 24,600
TOTAL EXPENSES & RESERVES $ 369,482 $ 381,503 $ 393,943 $ 406,818 $ 420,141 $ 433,930 $ 448,200 $ 462,968 $ 478,252 $ 494,069 $ 510,438 $ 527,378 $ 544,909 $ 563,053 $ 581,830
NET OPERATING INCOME $ 22064 $ 18,909 $ 20,055 $ 56,784 $ 20,313 $ 20447 $ 20,582 $ 20,721 $ 20,864 $ 21,008 $ 21,157 $ 21,308 $ 21,462 $ 21,619 $ 21,780
DEBT SERVICE

Mandatory Annual HCD Payment $ 14699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14699 S 14,699 $ 14699 S 14,699 $ 14699 $ 14,699 $ 14699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14,699

S T T T SN

Total Required Debt Service $ 14699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14699 S 14,699 $ 14699 $ 14,699 $ 14699 $ 14,699 $ 14699 $ 14,699 S 14,699 $ 14,699
Net Cash Flow $ 7365 $ 4210 $ 5356 $ 4208 $ 5614 $ 5748 $ 583 $ 602 $ 6165 $ 6309 $ 6458 $ 6609 $ 6763 $ 6920 $ 7,081
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 1.50 1.29 1.36 3.86 1.38 1.39 1.40 1.41 1.42 1.43 1.44 1.45 1.46 1.47 1.48

94



PLOT DATE/TIME:10/29/2019 3:53:05 PM

FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY
BLACKSTONE & SIMPSON SITE

DP REVISED EXHIBIT
OCT. 29, 2019

CITY OF FRESNO STANDARD NOTES

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCELS

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

APPROVAL OF THIS SPECIAL PERMIT MAY BECOME NULL & VOID IN THE EVENT THAT
DEVELOPMENT IS NOT COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL THE CONDITIONS &
REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED ON THIS SPECIAL PERMIT, THE ZONING ORDINANCE, & ALL PUBLIC
WORKS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS. THIS SPECIAL PERMIT IS GRANTED, & THE CONDITIONS
IMPOSED, BASED UPON THE OPERATION STATEMENT PROVIDED BY THE APPLICANT. THE
OPERATION STATEMENT IS MATERIAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF THIS SPECIAL PERMIT. UNLESS THE
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFICALLY REQUIRE OPERATION INCONSISTENT WITH THE
OPERATION STATEMENT, A NEW OR REVISED SPECIAL PERMIT IS REQUIRED IF THE OPERATION
OF THIS ESTABLISHMENT CHANGES OR BECOMES INCONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATION
STATEMENT. FAILURE TO OPERATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS & REQUIREMENTS
IMPOSED MAY RESULT IN REVOCATION OF THE SPECIAL PERMIT OR ANY OTHER ENFORCEMENT
REMEDY AVAILABLE UNDER THE LAW. THE DEVELOPMENT & RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT SHALL NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY DELETIONS OR OMISSIONS
RESULTING FROM THE SPECIAL PERMIT REVIEW PROCESS OR FOR ADDITIONS OR ALTERATIONS
TO CONSTRUCTION PLANS NOT SPECIFICALLY SUBMITTED & REVIEWED & APPROVED PURSUANT
TO THIS SPECIAL PERMIT OR SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS OR REVISIONS.

NO LAND SHALL BE USED, & NO STRUCTURE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED, OCCUPIED, ENLARGED,
ALTERED, DEMOLISHED, OR MOVED IN ANY ZONING DISTRICT, EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CODE. SPECIFIC USES OF LAND, BUILDINGS, & STRUCTURES LISTED AS
PROHIBITED IN ANY ZONING DISTRICT ARE HEREBY DECLARED TO BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE
PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, & WELFARE.

DEVELOPMENT SHALL TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS, &
STANDARD DRAWINGS OF THE CITY OF FRESNO PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT:
HTTPS://WWW.FRESNO.GOV/PUBLICWORKS/DEVELOPER-DOORWAY/#TAB-9

DEVELOPMENT SHALL TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CITY, COUNTY, STATE & FEDERAL
LAWS & REGULATIONS.

OWNERS & PERSONS HAVING OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN BUSINESSES OPERATING IN THE CITY OF
FRESNO (INCLUDING LEASING OUT ANY COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY, OR RENTING
OUT 4 OR MORE DWELLING UNITS) ARE REQUIRED BY THE FRESNO MUNICIPAL CODE (FMC) TO
OBTAIN A BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE. CONTACT THE CITY OF FRESNO FINANCE DEPARTMENT'S
BUSINESS TAX DIVISION AT (559) 621-6880 FOR MORE INFORMATION. INFORMATION & AN
APPLICATION FORM ARE AVAILABLE AT THE FOLLOWING WEBSITE:
HTTPS://WWW.FRESNO.GOV/FINANCE/BUSINESS

PROPOSED BUILDING(S) OR STRUCTURE(S) CONSTRUCTED ON THE PROPERTY MUST COMPLY
WITH THE PREVAILING CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE STANDARDS.

ANY BUILDING MODIFICATIONS &/OR ADDITIONS NOT INCLUDED WITH THIS APPLICATION ARE
NOT APPROVED WITH THIS SPECIAL PERMIT & WOULD BE SUBJECT TO A NEW SPECIAL PERMIT.

A PERMIT GRANTED UNDER THE FMC SHALL AUTOMATICALLY EXPIRE IF IT IS NOT EXERCISED OR
EXTENDED WITHIN 3 YEARS OF ITS ISSUANCE. REFER TO SECTION 15-5013, EXPIRATION OF
PLANNING ENTITLEMENTS, FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE EXERCISE OF RIGHTS.

NOTHING IN THIS DEVELOPMENT CODE SHALL BE DEEMED TO PROHIBIT THE ERECTION OF
TEMPORARY FENCING AROUND CONSTRUCTION SITES IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE BUILDING
CODE & OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FMC.

FUTURE FENCES SHALL BE REVIEWED & APPROVED BY THE DEVELOPMENT & RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

TREES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY PROPERTY OWNERS TO BE FREE FROM PHYSICAL DAMAGE OR
INJURING ARISING FROM LACK OF WATER, CHEMICAL DAMAGE, ACCIDENTS, VANDALISM,
INSECTS, & DISEASE. ANY TREE SHOWING SUCH DAMAGE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH ANOTHER
TREE.

NO TREE FOR WHICH A TREE REMOVAL PERMIT IS REQUIRED SHALL BE REMOVED UNTIL ALL
CONDITIONS OF THE PERMIT HAVE BEEN SATISFIED & THE DECISION HAS BECOME FINAL. IN
ADDITION, TREES APPROVED FOR REMOVAL IN CONJUNCTION WITH A DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATION SHALL NOT BE REMOVED BEFORE THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT OR
UNLESS ALL OF THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL OF THE DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS ARE
SATISFIED.

LANDSCAPING MUST BE IN PLACE BEFORE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY. A
HOLD ON OCCUPANCY SHALL BE PLACED ON THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT UNTIL SUCH TIME
THAT LANDSCAPING HAS BEEN APPROVED & VERIFIED FOR PROPER INSTALLATION BY THE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIVISION.

NEW LANDSCAPING SHALL HAVE AN AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM DESIGNED TO PROVIDE
ADEQUATE & EFFICIENT COVERAGE OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL. IRRIGATION SYSTEMS SHALL
COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE
&/OR THE CALIFORNIA MODEL WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE &/OR THE CALIFORNIA
PLUMBING CODE AS MAY BE AMENDED.

FUTURE TENANT IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE REVIEWED & APPROVED BY THE DEVELOPMENT &
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT TO ENSURE THAT ADEQUATE OFF-STREET PARKING IS
PROVIDED.

TREES REQUIRED FOR PARKING LOTS ARE IN ADDITION TO TREES REQUIRED ELSEWHERE ON
THE SITE AS PRESCRIBED IN THE FMC.

ALL ACCESSIBLE STALLS SHALL BE MARKED WITH THE INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL OF
ACCESSIBILITY & A WARNING THAT VEHICLES IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 10-1017 OF THE FRESNO
MUNICIPAL CODE SHALL BE TOWED AWAY. THE INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL & TOW-AWAY
WARNING SHALL BE POSTED CONSPICUOUSLY ON 7' POLES.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

APPLICANTS ARE ENCOURAGED TO PROVIDE SHARED VEHICLE & PEDESTRIAN ACCESS
BETWEEN ADJACENT PROPERTIES FOR CONVENIENCE, SAFETY, & EFFICIENT CIRCULATION. A
JOINT ACCESS COVENANT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

ALL GENERAL STANDARDS OF SECTION 15-2015 OF THE FMC SHALL APPLY WHEN LIGHTING IS
PROVIDED TO ILLUMINATE PARKING, SALES OR DISPLAY AREAS.

BICYCLE PARKING SPACES SHALL BE SUPPLIED ACCORDING TO TABLE 15-2429-D: REQUIRED ON-
SITE BICYCLE PARKING SPACES OF THE FMC. EACH BICYCLE PARKING SPACE SHALL BE A
MINIMUM OF 30" IN WIDTH & 8' IN LENGTH & SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE WITHOUT MOVING ANOTHER
BICYCLE. AT LEAST 30" OF CLEARANCE SHALL BE PROVIDED BETWEEN BICYCLE PARKING
SPACES & ADJACENT WALLS, POLES, LANDSCAPING, STREET FURNITURE, DRIVE AISLES, &
PEDESTRIAN WAYS & AT LEAST 5' FROM VEHICLE PARKING SPACES TO ALLOW FOR THE
MANEUVERING OF BIKES. OVERHEAD CLEARANCE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 7'. A MINIMUM &'
AISLE BETWEEN EACH ROW OF BICYCLE PARKING SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR BICYCLE
MANEUVERING BESIDE OR BETWEEN EACH ROW, WHEN MULTIPLE ROWS ARE PROPOSED.
BICYCLE PARKING SPACES SHALL NOT ENCROACH INTO PEDESTRIAN WAYS, LANDSCAPED
AREAS, OR OTHER REQUIRED OPEN SPACES, & SHALL BE LOCATED PROXIMAL TO STRUCTURES.

ALL GENERAL PROVISIONS OF SECTION 15-2403 OF THE FMC SHALL APPLY TO ALL PARKING
AREAS.

ALL FUTURE SIGNS SHALL BE ARCHITECTURALLY COMPATIBLE WITH THE PROPOSED
BUILDING(S). PROVIDE A SET OF DRAWINGS, WITH DESCRIPTIVE INFORMATION, INCLUDING,
MATERIALS, DESIGN & COLORS TO ALLOW FOR A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF THE FUTURE
SIGNAGE. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOU PROVIDE A COPY OF THE SIGNAGE EARLY IN THE
PROJECT PROCESS TO ALLOW FOR STAFF COMMENT.

SIGNS, OTHER THAN DIRECTIONAL SIGNS, IF APPLICABLE, ARE NOT APPROVED FOR
INSTALLATION AS PART OF THIS SPECIAL PERMIT.

ALL PROPOSED SIGNS SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT SIGN ORDINANCE. APPLICATIONS
FOR A SIGN PERMIT & REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMITTAL ARE AVAILABLE AT THE DEVELOPMENT &
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT'S PUBLIC FRONT COUNTER OR ONLINE:
HTTPS://WWW.FRESNO.GOV/DARM/PLANNING-DEVELOPMENT/APPLICATIONS-FORMS-FEES/
#TAB-12

WINDOW SIGNS LIMITED TO THE HOURS OF OPERATION, ADDRESS, OCCUPANCY, & EMERGENCY
INFORMATION, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING STANDARDS:

A) OPERATIONAL WINDOWS SIGNS SHALL NOT BE MOUNTED OR PLACED ON WINDOWS HIGHER
THAN THE SECOND STORY.

B) THE MAXIMUM AREA OF EXEMPT WINDOW SIGNAGE SHALL NOT EXCEED 3 SF IN AREA.

BANNERS, STREAMERS, MOVING SIGNS, & INFLATABLES (INCLUDING AIR DANCERS, BALLOONS, &
SIMILAR OBJECTS) ARE ALLOWED SUBJECT TO TEMPORARY USE PERMIT APPROVAL FOR
ESTABLISHMENTS WITHIN NON-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS. SIGNS OF THIS TYPE DO NOT COUNT
TOWARD TOTAL MAXIMUM SIGN AREA. NO SIGN PER THIS SECTION SHALL BE DISPLAYED FOR
MORE THAN 30 DAYS, & A PERIOD OF 30 DAYS MUST LAPSE BEFORE DISPLAYING ANOTHER SIGN.
SIGNS SHALL NOT BE DISPLAYED FOR MORE THAN 60 TOTAL DAYS DURING A CALENDAR YEAR.

NOISE LEVELS SHALL NOT EXCEED THE DECIBEL LEVELS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 15-2506 OF THE
FMC AT ANYTIME, MEASURED AT THE NEAREST SUBJECT PROPERTY LINE.

ALL PROJECTS, INCLUDING PROJECTS THAT INVOLVE LESS THAN 1 ACRE OF PROPERTY, ARE
REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF FRESNO’S URBAN STORM WATER QUALITY
MANAGEMENT & DISCHARGE CONTROL ORDINANCE, FMC CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE 7 (FMC SECTIONS
6-701 ET SEQ.)

WHEN A PROJECT INVOLVES 1 ACRE OR MORE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY (INCLUDING, BUT
NOT LIMITED TO, GRADING) THE DEVELOPER IS REQUIRED TO OBTAIN A STORMWATER
DISCHARGE PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION, WITH A NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) FILED PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY GRADING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY. CONTACT THE FRESNO OFFICE
OF THE CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD AT (559) 445-6281 REGARDING
THE REQUIRED NOI & STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
CALIFORNIA’S CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER REGULATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE
WATER BOARD VIA THE INTERNET:

WWW.WATERBOARDS.CA.GOV/WATER ISSUES/PROGRAMS/STORMWATER/CONSTRUCTION.SHT
ML.

HELPFUL INFORMATION FOR PREPARING & IMPLEMENTING STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLANS MAY ALSO BE OBTAINED FROM THE CALIFORNIA STORMWATER QUALITY
ASSOCIATION VIA ITS WEBSITE: WWW.CASQA.ORG

WHEN A PROJECT INVOLVES SPECIFIED NONRESIDENTIAL ACTIVITIES (CERTAIN COMMERCIAL &
INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITIES), AN ONGOING INDUSTRIAL STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT IS ALSO
REQUIRED. CONTACT THE FRESNO OFFICE OF THE CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY
CONTROL BOARD AT 559-445-6281 TO FIND OUT WHETHER YOUR PROJECT/BUSINESS REQUIRES
AN INDUSTRIAL STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT, & TO OBTAIN DETAILS ON SECURING THIS
PERMIT. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON INDUSTRIAL STORMWATER REGULATIONS MAY BE
OBTAINED FROM THE FOLLOWING WEBSITE:

WWW.WATERBOARDS.CA.GOV/WATER ISSUES/PROGRAMS/STORMWATER/INDUSTRIAL.SHTML,

SCREEN ALL ROOF-MOUNTED EQUIPMENT FROM THE VIEW OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.

IF ARCHAEOLOGICAL &/OR ANIMAL FOSSIL MATERIAL IS ENCOUNTERED DURING PROJECT
SURVEYING, GRADING, EXCAVATING, OR CONSTRUCTION, WORK SHALL STOP IMMEDIATELY.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

IF THERE ARE SUSPECTED HUMAN REMAINS, THE FRESNO COUNTY CORONER SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY CONTACTED. IF THE REMAINS OR OTHER ARCHAEOLOGICAL MATERIAL IS
POSSIBLY NATIVE AMERICAN IN ORIGIN, THE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (PHONE:
(916) 653-4082) SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY CONTACTED, & THE CALIFORNIA ARCHAEOLOGICAL
INVENTORY/SOUTHERN SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY INFORMATION CENTER (PHONE: (805) 644-2289)
SHALL BE CONTACTED TO OBTAIN A REFERRAL LIST OF RECOGNIZED ARCHAEOLOGISTS. AN
ARCHEOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT SHALL BE CONDUCTED FOR THE PROJECT, THE SITE SHALL BE
FORMALLY RECORDED, & RECOMMENDATIONS MADE TO THE CITY AS TO ANY FURTHER SITE
INVESTIGATION OR SITE AVOIDANCE/PRESERVATION.

IF ANIMAL FOSSILS ARE UNCOVERED, THE MUSEUM OF PALEONTOLOGY, U.C. BERKELEY SHALL
BE CONTACTED TO OBTAIN A REFERRAL LIST OF RECOGNIZED PALEONTOLOGISTS. AN
ASSESSMENT SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY A PALEONTOLOGIST &, IF THE PALEONTOLOGIST
DETERMINES THE MATERIAL TO BE SIGNIFICANT, IT SHALL BE PRESERVED.

CONNECTION TO A MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM IS REQUIRED UNLESS APPROVED MEASURES
ARE INCLUDED IN THE PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR AN ALTERNATIVE WATER
SUPPLY.

CONNECTION TO A MUNICIPAL CITY OF FRESNO SEWER SYSTEM IS REQUIRED UNLESS
APPROVED MEASURES ARE INCLUDED IN THE PROJECT CONDITIONS FOR ALTERNATIVE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES.

CITY OF FRESNO WATER & SEWER CONNECTION CHARGE OBLIGATIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS
PROJECT WILL BE COMPUTED DURING THE BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PLAN CHECK PROCESS &
SHALL BE PAYABLE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT UNLESS OTHER ARRANGEMENTS
HAVE BEEN APPROVED TO DEFER SUCH PAYMENTS TO A LATER DATE. FOR INFORMATION
RELATING TO WATER & SEWER SERVICE REQUIREMENTS & CONNECTION CHARGES, CONTACT
FRANK SABURIT AT (559) 621-8277.

OPEN STREET CUTS ARE NOT PERMITTED; ALL UTILITY CONNECTIONS MUST BE BORED.

CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL: A BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE MAY BE REQUIRED ON THE
WATER SERVICE. CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES, WATER DIVISION (559) 621-
5300 FOR REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO APPROVED DEVICES, LOCATIONS, TESTING &
ACCEPTANCE. THIS REQUIREMENT MUST BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO FINAL OCCUPANCY.

OPEN STORAGE (OUTSIDE AN ENCLOSED BUILDING) SHALL BE LIMITED TO VEHICLES, BOATS,
RECREATIONAL VEHICLES, & TRAILERS. OUTDOOR STORAGES AREAS SHALL BE SCREENED
FROM PUBLIC VIEW BY BUILDING FACADES OR SOLID FENCES. AT THE DISCRETION OF THE
REVIEW AUTHORITY, THE TREATMENT OF THE GROUND SURFACE OF THE OPEN STORAGE AREA
MAY BE GRAVEL OR OTHER MATERIALS AS PRESCRIBED BY THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR
POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT, THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, THE FIRE DEPARTMENT, &
THE FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT. ALL OPEN STORAGE MUST BE
DEPICTED ON THE SITE PLAN & DESCRIBED IN OPERATION. IF IT IS NOT, IT IS NOT ALLOWED ON
THE SITE.

IF VIDEO SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS ARE REQUIRED OR INSTALLED, PROVIDE SIGNS UNDER THE
SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS WHICH NOTIFY THE PUBLIC THAT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS
MONITORED BY VIDEO SURVEILLANCE.

REPAIR ALL DAMAGED &/OR OFF-GRADE CONCRETE STREET &/OR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS AS
DETERMINED BY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT ENGINEER PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY.

ANY SURVEY MONUMENTS WITHIN THE AREA OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PRESERVED OR
RESET BY A PERSON LICENSED TO PRACTICE LAND SURVEYING IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

(2) WORKING DAYS BEFORE COMMENCING EXCAVATION OPERATIONS WITHIN THE STREET
RIGHT-OF-WAY &/OR UTILITY EASEMENTS, ALL (E) UNDERGROUND FACILITIES SHALL HAVE BEEN
LOCATED BY UNDERGROUND SERVICES ALERT (USA). CALL 1-800-642-2444.

UNDERGROUND ALL (E) OFFSITE OVERHEAD UTILITIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THIS SITE/MAP AS
PER FMC SECTION 15-4114.

ALL (E) SIDEWALKS IN EXCESS OF 2% MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE MUST BE BROUGHT INTO
COMPLIANCE PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCES BY PUBLIC WORKS.

VACATIONS: A FEASIBILITY STUDY IS REQUIRED TO DETERMINE VIABILITY & TO ESTABLISH
CONDITIONS, IF ANY. IF APPROVED, RECORDATION OF THE VACATION IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO
ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS.

DEEDS ARE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE EASEMENTS TO THE CITY FOR REQUIRED PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS. THEY SHALL BE PREPARED BY THE OWNER/DEVELOPER'S ENGINEER.
EXECUTED COPIES SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY WITH VERIFICATION OF OWNERSHIP
PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS.

REMOVE & DISPOSE OF OVERHEAD STREETLIGHT CONDUCTORS & WOOD POLE TO AN
APPROVED SITE. LUMINAIRE FIXTURE & BRACKET SHALL BE SALVAGED TO THE CITY OF FRESNO
STORAGE YARD. CALL 621-1312 (48) HOURS IN ADVANCE. JOINT POLE WITH TRANSFORMER TO
REMAIN.

ALL (E) DRIVEWAY APPROACHES WHICH NO LONGER PROVIDE ACCESS TO APPROVED VEHICLE
PARKING AREAS SHALL BE REMOVED UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.
SUCH AREAS SHALL BE RECONSTRUCTED WITH CURB, GUTTER, & SIDEWALK TO MATCH
ADJACENT STREET IMPROVEMENTS.

INSTALL STREETLIGHTS ON ALL FRONTAGES TO CITY STANDARDS AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY
TRAFFIC ENGINEER. STREET LIGHTING PLANS ARE REQUIRED & MUST BE APPROVED BY THE
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT / ENGINEERING SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE
WORK.

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER: HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF FRESNO

1331 FULTON MALL
FRESNO, CA 93776-1985
PHNO (559) 443-8492
FAXNO (559) 443-8471

EXISTING LAND USE: CGH - GENERAL HEAVY COMMERCIAL

PROPO

SED LAND USE: NMX - NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED-USE

ZONING: NMX

SPECIF

IC PLAN: N/A

COMMUNITY PLAN: FRESNO HIGH-ROEDING

SITE AREA: 36,325 SF /.83 ACRES
TOTAL EXISTING BUILDING AREA: 17,051 SF COMMERCIAL
EXISTING AREA TO BE DEMOLISHED: 1,986 SF

EXISTING AREA TO BE CONVERTED TO RESIDENTIAL: 8,003 SF

NEW BUILDING AREA: 21,965 SF RESIDENTIAL & 1,852 SF COMMERCIAL
TOTAL PROPOSED BUILDING AREA: 29,968 SF RESIDENTIAL & 8,914 SF COMMERCIAL
LOT COVERAGE: 15,054 SF / 36,325 SF = 41%
FAR: 39,848 SF/ 36,325 SF = 1.07

PAVED

AREA: 12,623 SF

LANDSCAPED AREA: 8,648 SF
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED: 15%
OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: *5,425 SF /36,325 SF = 15%

*INCLUDES 2,680 SF OF AREA WITHIN REQUIRED SETBACKS AS AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING

CONCESSION PER FMC 15-2205

PARCE

L1

1616 E SIMPSON AVE; FRESNO, CA 93704
APN #44310408
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 14 & 15 BLK 2 BLACKSTONE AVE TR 2 BK 10 PG 55

PARCE

L2

1624 E SIMPSON AVE; FRESNO, CA 93704
APN #44310409
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 12 & 13 BLK 2 BLACKSTONE AVE TR 2 BK 10 PG 55

PARCE
3039/30

L3
45 N BLACKSTONE AVE; FRESNO, CA 93704

APN# 44310410
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 1-6 EX ST BLK 2 BLACKSTONE AVE TR 2 BK 10/55

PARCE
3019 N

L4
BLACKSTONE AVE; FRESNO, CA 93704

APN# 44310423
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 7 & 8 BLK 2 BLACKSTONE AVE TR 2 BK 10 PG 55

SH

EET INDEX

GENERAL INFORMATION

G-001

COVER SHEET

LANDSCAPE

L-111
L-112
L-141
L-142
L-151
L-152
L-640

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS PLAN - LEVEL 1 NORTH
LAYOUT AND MATERIALS PLAN - LEVEL 1 SOUTH
IRRIGATION PLAN - LEVEL 1 NORTH

IRRIGATION PLAN - LEVEL 1 SOUTH

PLANTING PLAN - LEVEL 1 NORTH

PLANTING PLAN - LEVEL 1 SOUTH

IRRIGATION SCHEDULE, NOTES, AND CALCULATIONS

ARCHITECTURAL

A-101
A121
A-122
A-123
A-201
A-202
A-203

SITE PLAN

LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
COURTYARD ELEVATIONS

APPL. NO.P19-02688

PLANNING REVIEW BY

EXHIBITA-1

DATE

TRAFFIC ENG.

DATE

APPROVED BY

DATE

CITY OF FRESNO DARM DEPT

D AT E 11/06/2019

3

# - o B
. NN B YN T
T 0 WA

iy

T

WS ey M.

-
L

]

C NORTH
-TF m H, >
=] = = =
e (] o [V
= %, ;“ 2z
: E E.Daytol
7]
o
Manchester Center 0
Regal Cinemas
Manchester 16 ™=
E Fountain Way
=z =
(] = =
g = (a1) e
E Andrews Ave :7 L;' 2
+ = Slarbucks@ =
= g
2 E Shields Ave
fvie O
=3
[}
o .
& 0
b A% =
= 3 = ~
3039 Morth | ™ %) @ o
Blackstone Avenue i &
= [
T
(=]
E Comell Ave S I | E E Comell Ave ] E Comel
E Michigan Ave E Michigan Ave
=
= )
) 3
o i
E Princeton Ave 7* E Princeton Ave w 0]
2 (a1)
Lat)

A
M AYE

g auo
HAN

]

Brown. Ave

m

E Harvard Ave

K4 SHLWBSOA

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Seattle, WA 98101

GGLO

1301 First Avenue, Suite 301

DESIGN

http://www.gglo.com

FRESNOYEEN
s HOUSING
AUTHORITY 2642

PROJECT:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

FRESNO, CA
93704

OWNER:

1331 Fulton Mall
FRESNO, CA
93721

D FRESNO HOUSING
AUTHORITY -
BLACKSTONE SITE

—— 3039 N BLACKSTONE AVE

FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY

MARK DATE

DESCRIPTION

B REVISIONS

10/29/2019

REVISED EXHIBIT

06/18/2019

REVISED EXHIBIT - SITE PLAN

REVISED EXHIBIT

10/16/2017

DP SUBMITTAL

E
D
— C 06/14/2019
B
A

09/27/2017

DRC AGENDA SUBMITTAL

MARK DATE

DESCRIPTION

ISSUE INFORMATION

PROJECT NO.:

2017045

GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE: JF

GGLO PROJECT MANAGER: SFC

OWNER APPROVAL:

SHEET TITLE

COVER SHEET

SHEET NO.

G-001

COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"

95


JAREDTD
DARM 1 No Auto Approved By


PLOT DATE/TIME:10/29/2019 4:14:17 PM

1 2 3 4 5 6
« \ , z
\ ‘ ‘ N\ : L
\ [ A :,:I ) o — (a]
o 1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
Seattle, WA 98101
http://lwww.gglo.com
|
E S | M PS O N AVE (E) STREET CENTERLINE
|Rdl :
N e — = — = — = = T = T e — Y — = — —
_———-_— - — Y — - — - —— - —— - - T T T T T T T T N (E) DRIVEWAY APPROACHES TO BE NEW PLANTING AREA, TYP. NEW CIP CONCRETE SIDEWALK
REMOVED & REPLACED W/ CURB, GUTTER & PER PW STANDARD P-5, TYP. \ VIBRANT
SIDEWALK TO MATCH (E) IMPROVEMENTS TO P) CANOPY ABOVE FRES N 0
THE WEST PER PW STANDARDS P-5 & P-50 2 (E) CONC. MEDIAN QUALITY SCCRBLANTS:
(P) VEHICLE (P) DRIVEWAY APPROACH PER CITY HUUEWGH 0 USI N G
500" ENTRY/EXIT OF FRESNO STANDARDS P-2 & P-6 5700 ﬂUTH RIT ENGAGED
v 0 FESIDENTS
34I_1 1ll 24I_0ll 24I_4ll 4!_2“ 21I_9ll 6!_9“ /(E) CONC' CURB & GUTTER
- - 7; _— 77 :7 - - ——— “ p— —_ - —— — —tY————— - - 7 —
___ _ = 5 ‘ ‘ \ - T R ~ T A // (E) ACCESSIBLE RAMP
(3] ‘ ) . :
/ & \ |/ j ( e ) \
A ll | C 1/ | = PROPOSED UTILITY REROUTE ' / NEW CORNER DEDICATION
! o | 2 (UNDERGROUND, EXTENTS TO ——(E) PLANTER
oy | ’:‘ (P) ENTRY/’EXW | = II BE CONFIRMED W/ PG&E / AT&T)— \ / (P)ENTRY/EXIT __ (E) STREET LIGHT, TYP. -
E ~7 | L R e DO 7 / | | ﬁ
N89°33'45"E R | I— — : » ) N '14 - a» cassse a» o> V7
7 ! [] O , S : | ) (E) WATER VALVE, TYP. .
1 i ; | | & o
3 j e , L Yt | 1|
! ! ! L 20-0 Ll I o (E) FIRE HYDRANT 5%
< 151 8 100 \, g !294—; 11 40 ' | N | ! T © ©
E? I_ n ", l_ 1L \ " : ll_ H |_ " \ . N N B o - N |
N - e T T 7 ; - 5 ‘|,:\ «>) LANDSCAPING, WP.f/ﬁ' I
| | | S o BRI B ] ——(E) BUILDING ABOVE PROJECT:
FRONT SETBACK (ADJACENT | & | \ <] E| : . IUZJ ot K
TO RS DISTRICT) . ' .
— e N ISR 5 : X E) BUILDIN ! _—(E) 6 SIDEWALK
i o A, 3 |\ : ) 8ULONG | | —ess D FRESNO HOUSING
— a7 ‘
= , RN | W | ENTRY TO REMAIN .
| B ] 6"/\,,0 % R :| APPL. NO.P19-02688  EXHIBITA-2 DATE tuosr2o10 AUTHORITY -
| S, I o | BLACKSTONE SITE
, ! A o I
| ' I | o R e R | PLANNING REVIEW BY DATE
I 4 R | ‘ N (P) ACCESSIBLE STALL SIGNAGE !
I / | 7 S pEsE N1 MOUNTED TO BUILDING WAL | H TRAFFIC ENG. DATE
' = /A 8 ) | |
| i I /| - 2 . APPROVED BY DATE
I b P)CONC WAL o : ~ (P)POLEMOUNTED | | I i |
I | LA ACCESSBLESTALLSIGNAGE | N—+— | CITY OF FRESNO DARM DEPT
| | ) s : o i S = | i |
R B R | R | P) CONC. WAL
LANDSCIAPE BUFFE 4I__0ll L3I_0Il - . 15I_0ll R :, i - | ‘ 27I_0ll' | :, 15I_0ll' . . B 3I_0Il !, 4I_0Il : H
| ,{ T — - - | , f | I ) B - | 'I 1 :
150" | | | R B . e I
| [ . o b [
; I , : . | . PROJECT ADDRESS:
| - : | S . . |
| || — | . EEE | X 2 GENERAL SITE PLAN NOTES
4,391 SF OPEN SPACE . o . N i R R B | | ® 3039 N BLACKSTONE AVE
(710 oF I SE TR ks (E) PARC S | i i Sy Lk | b : i : B | 1 SITE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO FRESNO, CA
E) PARCEL LINE N R . , : I , _ , ,
1,681 SF OUTSIDE OF SETBACKS L ERREN Y o | S B . DIMENSIONS AND LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES, IS BASED ON THE 93704
RS-5 ZONE I U | _ | REDDASH INDICATES (P) b | w SURVEY ON SHEET V-001 AND IS PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL
| e : 'FIRE LANE MARKING, TYP. o b s PURPOSES ONLY. THE ARCHITECT TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ITS
| o | e ) T R . S| ¢ ACCURACY. OWNER:
P , o 4 | = i
! NEW 3 STORY | {F) CARFORT COVE|R ABOVE O T I i EXISTING 2 STORY 15,065 SE 2 2. VERIFY LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES. DO NOT DAMAGE OR FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY
SIDE SETBACK (ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL BUILDING (I I s L ] BUILDING TO REMAIN, | DISTURB EXISTING UTILITIES. 1331 Fulton Mall
| e _ AR I !
TORS D|ISTRICT) > 18,420 SF / 27 UNITS I I :r : ‘ R R : ] | i 7’062GSRFO%?\II\EA)I\£E58AL AT I & 3. ALL ITEMS NOT MARKED AS EXISTING, (E), ARE PROPOSED. ;;EZS;NO, CA
I = | N S N\ L= ;! ! 3
0o | = || N N | 8,003 SF /11 UNITS . 4. SEE CITY OF FRESNO STANDARD NOTES, SHEET G-001 FOR ADDITIONAL
- | N | *} R II | | RESIDENTIAL AT 2ND FLOO : REQUIREMENTS. C
Sl i b . :
| I . I P L : P) CARPORT COVER ABOVE | "\ SPACE FOR NEW SHORT- |
| o B : | N _ . TERM BICYCLE PARKING
| | I (P) BUMPER OVERHANG LINE | — , | |
—; \ | ‘ B [ ) . . | ’ ‘ ’ - o ‘ | | |
|- | . oo T | DWELLING UNIT COUNT
§ & | | : |~ I ; I SEAREEE S 1 | "~ NEW BUILDING ENTRY H
= | | : ' (P) 6" HIGH CONC. CURB, TYP. | e SRR (. : H | STUDIO 9
| | : i | ! l ’ | —: : : | 1BR 18
[ S N : R : I 2BR 8
| |} L IR | o1 :
| | LT I I RN RN S {p . I I
| | l (E) ALLEY TO BE VACATED R o . | I ‘I TOTAL 41
| _ | | - B S ——| o | I
| © | | = B E—— i
| 3 1+ | e 1 | .
I | o o R |
(E) 6' HIGH MASONRY | | | N S ! | PARKING DATA
WALL TC|> REMAIN | L | ~ o ~ Al (E) C.L. FENCE & BOLLARDS TO BE REMOVED | | \
l ‘ (= : I | |
| X : I .. |
| ' : | ez I : | \ NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES REQUIRED: -
| | I g (| o 65 o s (PER AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRANSIT-SERVICED DEVELOPMENT REDUCTION)
| L | | w | 0.5 STALLS/UNIT x 41 UNITS =21 STALLS RESIDENTIAL
| Ay o B [ | I | (E) BUILDING ENTRY \ 8,914 SF x 1 STALL/600 SF = 15 STALLS COMMERCIAL
ALLEY SETBACK | | | pd S o : TO REMAIN . = 36 STALLS TOTAL
g | o i a = — I | h 1 |
| N | o Ragoe ' S L | 3 LL NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES PROVIDED: =22 STALLS RESIDENTIAL
I . 2 U | o : Y R | | = = 2 STALLS COMMERCIAL OFF-STREET
I o : , | / ~ ! SERANRE | P) CARPORT COVER ABOVE [ <C = 18 STALLS COMMERCIAL ON-STREET
_______ —— SRR ——— %ttt = ||' ¥ y R | | =42 STALLS TOTAL
A $89°32'56"W r , [~ L ; i | LLl NUMBER OF ACCESSIBLE PARKING
N , /S R, / ] — . = SPACES REQUIRED / PROVIDED: =2/2STALLS
- - - - - - - - - - - - 231_11!1 B > (P) EXIT 301_1“ 11610' 6"0" / ’ . ~0" T ' . . / ’ ‘ : ‘ L ) o : : :
i~ : 7 7 20 i o N Lo . O PARKING RATIO: = 1 STALL /845 SF
< \ 60-0" — /- (E)WATERBOX g - PROPOSED FIRE PUMP ROOM ACCESS ! —
| M o R I B T Lo . 9p) NUMBER OF BICYCLE PARKING SPACES REQUIRED / PROVIDED:
(E) UTILITY POLE & GUY E) ALLEY ) / - RECRIRE I o el | % 0 FOR MULTI-FAMILY, 2 MIN. FOR RETAIL = 2 SHORT-TERM
| WIRE TO BE REMOVED ( ) w _(E)SSMANHOLE /o — m— i . 0 FOR RETAIL, 1 PER 15 DWELLING UNITS =3 LONG-TERM
< Sty e N SRR | ! O MARK DATE  DESCRIPTION
S - . ! R | | '
| M/g VA e S | N i B REVISIONS
[ ——— W W) E B B . . / : . : o I : )  > . . /
| | | &, WA T . L=z
I ' | / /’\ffyfo -{E) GASMETER TO BE REMOYED, : ol < | ~—(E) BILLBOARD TO Z
' ' | // 6:’7/{6\ N . A f S 6:,5’1/,\ : BE REMOVED
/> ¥ (P)AC PAVING TO PW STANDARDS \ /o o Tk |
l 1 / \ \P21,P-28P23TYP.— "= = . -
/0 ’ | V7 S i o .
/ y |  “(E)BFPTOBEREMOVED/RELOCATED—/| : =
' ' /o ’uT/ T R | =
\ / — ,|// LR 39-10" NEW 3 STORY BUILDING . o E 10/20/2019  REVISED EXHIBIT
(E) SURFACE PARKING / / ~ ; — .
\ / ~ (E)1,986 SFBUILDING - 1852 GSFIQ: O%?\l'\g'\f_EEI\Q/EIAL Al l D 06/18/2019 ~ REVISED EXHIBIT - SITE PLAN
| TOBEDEMOLISHED . ]
J / | Raa, ~ s | ' _—(E)DRIVEWAY APPROACH TO 2 : — C  06/1412019 REVISED EXHIBIT
' / / 0" ' 271" | 4 Lo 3,500 SF /3 RESIDENTIAL | ~[" BEREMOVED & REPLACED W/ 3
| | I ~ REIE ‘ g — UNITS ON UPPER LEVELS | CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALK TO B 10/16/2017 DP SUBMITTAL
/ / ; , : 1,034 SF
RS-5 ZONE NMX ZONE / NEW TRASHENCLOSUREPER | OPEN | MATCH (E) MPROVEMENTS PER
| / | / | w || CITY OF FRESNO PW STANDARDS LT SPACE . PW STANDARDS P-2, P-5 & P-6 A 09/27/2017 DRC AGENDA SUBMITTAL
| | | / = ; | h MARK DATE DESCRIPTION
e ~ I
\ | | . ; i | ISSUE INFORMATION
| | | | [ .
|
| | | | | | | I "~ (P) CANOPY ABOVE Z
| |
|
) ! . PROJECT NO.: 2017045
| I ' - (P) CONC. WAL | O GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE: JF
| | | ! . GGLO PROJECT MANAGER: SFC
| | | 3 N | ‘ , OWNER APPROVAL:
4 I
I A
I | | I | __—(E)BUILDING I m SHEET TITLE
' ' | NMX ZONE " EASEMENT PER FIC 152410 |
| | | e ' | O | STEPLAN
|
I I
3I_5" 22I_0" 40I_9" 36'_1 1 n 1 |_1 ll‘ 6'_2" 5I_1 1 n 49I_1 n I I
500" 500" 160" 110-4" 550"
7 7 7 NORTH
A1 SITE PLAN o 5 10 20 I SHEETHO.
e — e —
1II = 10'_0" 1 0 1
A |
COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"
96
1 2 3 4 5 6



JAREDTD
DARM 1 No Auto Approved By


Baker Manock
SJensen x

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

— T

Kenneth J. Price
Attorney at Law

MEMORANDUM kprice@bakermanock.com

Fig Garden Financial Center

5260 North Palm Avenue

TO: Boards of Commissioners
FRESNO HOUSING AUTHORITY Fourth Floor
Fresno, California 93704
FROM: Kenneth J. Price
Tel: 559.432.5400
BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN, PC
Fax: 559.432.5620
DATE: June 18, 2020 www.bakermanock.com
RE: REVISED BYLAWS

During its May 26, 2020 meeting, the Boards of Commission discussed recommendations
to the City and County Housing Authority Bylaws by the Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee comprised
of Chairs Jones and Sablan, City Commissioner Terra Brusseau and County Commissioner Cary
Catalano, as well as CEO Preston Prince and myself.

As part of this discussion, I presented the recommended changes to the Bylaws. During
this presentation, there were no requests for changes to the documents. Since that meeting, staff
and I have also received no additional recommendations to the Bylaws.

Attached to this memorandum are the proposed Bylaws in redline form. The following is
a high-level summary of the revisions, which are attached in redline form:

e Changes involving the appointment and activities of the Chairs in Article II as follows:

(1) No Board of Commissioners member may be elected Chair without first serving
on the Board of Commissioners for two years (Section 2).

(2) Effective January 1, 2021, upon completion of the Chair's term, the Chair shall
not be eligible to serve as an officer (either Chair or Vice Chair) for a two-year period
unless the Vice Chair declines to run, or is otherwise unavailable to serve, as Chair.
(Section 6).

3) Should the Chair become vacant, the Vice Chair may serve out the remainder of
the Chair's term and then run to serve another two-year term (Section 7).

e The Committee recommended a new Article IV entitled "Commissioner Activities",
which provides:

2586754v1/18621.0001
97



June 18, 2020

Page 2

(1) Incorporates the powers given to Housing Authority Boards in the California
Health and Safety Code and the United States Housing Act (Section 1).

(2) Reiterates that Commissioners have a fiduciary obligation to act in the best
interest of the Housing Authority (Section 2).

3) Reiterates that Commissioners have certain ethics and training obligations as
provided under law and requires the counsel to facilitate these trainings (Section 3).

4) Specifies that the Boards may determine whether or not a Board member is acting
within the course and scope of his or her duties as a Board member when seeking
indemnity, which is consistent with state law (Section 4).

The Committee recommended a few revisions to Article V regarding the creation of
standing committees:

(1) Executive Committee duties are described in greater detail (Section 1.1.2).

(2) The Audit Committee shall be comprised of the Executive Committee (Section
1.2.2)

3) An ad hoc nominating committee has been eliminated (Section 2).

Recommendation: Approve Bylaws for the City Housing Authority and County Housing
Authority.

2586754v1/18621.0001

98



DRAFT

5/21/20

BY-LAWS FOR THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ARTICLE I - THE AUTHORITY

Section 1.  Name of Authority. The name of the Authority shall be “Housing

Authority of County of Fresno, California.”

Section 2. Seal of Authority. The seal of Authority shall be in the form of a

circle and shall bear the name of the Authority and the year of its organization.

Section 3. Office of Authority. The offices of the Authority shall be at 1331

Fulton Mall in the City of Fresno, State of California, but the Authority may hold its

meetings at such places as it may designate, pursuant to applicable law.

ARTICLE II — OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Authority’s Board of Commissioners
shall be a Chair, a Vice Chair and a Secretary/Treasurer.

Section 2.  Chair. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Commissioners. The Chair shall make appointments to all committees on behalf of the
Board of Commissioners and lead the supervision of the CEO/Executive Director. At
each meeting, the Chair shall submit such recommendations and information as he or she
may consider proper concerning the business, affairs and policies of the Authority. No

member of the Board of Commissioners may be elected Chair without first serving on the

Board of Commission for at least two (2) years.

2570458v1 /18621.0001 1
99



DRAFT

5/21/20

Section 3.  Vice Chair. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in
the absence or incapacity of the Chair; and in case of the resignation or death of the
Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform such duties as are imposed on the Chair pursuant to

Section 7 below-unti-such-time-as-the Board-of Commisstoners-shall select-anewChair.

Section 4.  Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall be the

CEO/Executive Director of the Authority and, as CEO/Executive Director, he or she shall
have general supervision over the administration of its business and affairs, subject to the
direction of the Board of Commissioners. He or she shall be charged with the
management of the operations of the Authority. Additionally, the Secretary/Treasurer
shall sign all contracts, deeds, and other instruments on behalf of the Board of
Commissioners, as authorized by resolution of the Board of Commissioners.

As Secretary, he or she shall keep the records of the Authority, shall act as
Secretary of the meetings of the Board of Commissioners and record all votes, and shall
keep a record of the proceedings of the Board of Commissioners in a journal of
proceedings to be kept for such purposes, and shall perform all duties incident to his or
her office. He or she shall keep in safe custody the seal of the Authority and shall have
the power to affix such seal to all contracts and instruments authorized to be executed by
the Board of Commissioners.

As Treasurer, he or she shall have the care and custody of all funds of the
Authority and shall deposit the same in the name of the Authority in such bank or banks
as the Board of Commissioners may select. He or she shall pay out and disburse moneys

under the direction of the Board of Commissioners, as delegated to him or her by Board

2570458v1 /18621.0001 2
100



DRAFT

5/21/20

of Commissioners adopted policy and in the annual budget. He or she shall be

responsible for management and oversight of all fiscal records and activities of the
Authority and shall render a quarterly account of the financial conditions of the Board of
Commissioners. The Secretary/Treasurer shall give such bond for the faithful
performance of his or her duties as the Authority may determine. Checks may be signed

and countersigned by any two individuals designated as "Executive Staff" under a Board

resolution, including the annual salary resolution or succession policy, ef-the-following

Administrative—Officer—Chief-Operations—Officer; or any other designee as identified

pursuant to resolution of the Board of Commissioners.

The CEO/Executive Director and Secretary/Treasurer shall be approved by the
Board of Commissioners, upon such terms as it determines. No Commissioner shall be
eligible for this office.

Section 5. Additional Duties. The officers shall perform such other duties and

functions as may from time to time be required by the Board of Commissioners or the
bylaws or rules and regulations of the Board of Commissioners.

Section 6. Election or Appointment. The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected

at the annual meeting of the Board of Commissioners from among the commissioners of
the Board of Commissioners, and shall hold office for two years or until their successors
are elected and qualified. The election of the Chair and Vice Chair shall occur at the
annual meeting in even numbered years, unless rescheduled by the Board of

Commissioners. Effective as of January 1, 2021. upon the completion of the Chair's

2570458v1 /18621.0001 3
101



DRAFT

5/21/20

term, the Chair shall not be eligible to serve as an officer of the Board of Commissioners

for a two-vear period unless the Vice Chair declines to run, or is otherwise ineligible to

serve, as Chair.

Any Commissioner wishing to be considered for Chair or Vice-Chair shall make
his or her interest known to the Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting onetwe
months or more before the meeting at which the election is to take place.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, wWhen the term of an officer

commissioner expires, he/she shall continue to serve until reappointed or a successor is
named.

Section 7.  Vacancies. Should the Chair become vacant, the Vice Chair may

serve the remainder of the Chair's term as well as one entire two-year term. Should the

offices—of Chair-er-Vice Chair become vacant, the Board of Commissioners shall elect a
successor from its membership at the next regular meeting, and such election shall be for

the unexpired term of the Vice Chairsaid-effice. If both the Chair and Vice Chair become

vacant, the Board of Commissioners shall elect the successors from its membership at the

next regular meeting, and such election shall be for the unexpired terms of the positions.

Section 8.  Additional Personnel. The CEO/Executive Director is the only

employee appointed and supervised by the Board of Commissioners. The selection of
personnel, their compensation and the terms of employment shall be at the discretion of
the CEO/Executive Director subject to the laws of the State of California and the

personnel policies of the Authority. The terms and compensation of the CEO/Executive

2570458v1 /18621.0001 4
102



DRAFT

5/21/20
Director shall be set forth in a written contract signed by the Chair of the Board of
Commissioners.

Section 9. Accounting and Legal Professionals. The Board of Commissioners

shall retain appropriate accounting and legal professionals to assist it in such areas as
auditing, legal compliance, and otherwise as it may determine is appropriate and
convenient to carry out the business of the Authority.

ARTICLE IIT - MEETINGS

Section 1.  Annual Meetings. The annual meetings of the Board of

Commissioners shall be held in December at the regularly scheduled meeting of the
Board of Commissioners. With the consent of the Chair, the annual meeting may be
postponed until no later than the next regularly scheduled meeting in January of the very
next year.

Section 2.  Regular Meetings. Regular meetings shall be noticed in compliance

with the Ralph M. Brown Act at the regular meeting place of the Board of
Commissioners, or at a location designated by the Board of Commissioners. On or
before the annual meeting, the Board shall adopt a schedule of meetings for the next
calendar year. However, any meeting may be rescheduled upon a majority vote of the
Board of Commissioners.

Section 3.  Special Meetings. Upon written request of twe-erno less than two

and no more than three members of the Board of Commissioners or as deemed necessary

by the Chair or CEO/Executive Director, a special meeting of the Board of

Commissioners may be called for the purpose of transacting any business designated in

2570458v1 /18621.0001 5
103



DRAFT

5/21/20
the call. Special meetings shall be noticed and held in compliance with the Ralph M.

Brown Act. The call for a special meeting may be delivered to each member of the

Board of Commissioners at any time prior to the meeting via electronic mail;-ermay-be

at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the date of such special meeting, or may be
waived by written waiver signed by all the members of the Board of Commissioners prior

to the meeting. Upon delivery of notice via electronic mail, Authority staff shall make

reasonable efforts to follow up with a phone call to ensure that each member of the Board

of Commissioners received such notice. At such special meeting, no business shall be

considered other than as designated on the agenda.

Section4.  Quorum. The powers of the Authority shall be vested in the Board
of Commissioners thereof in office from time to time. Four (4) commissioners shall
constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting its business and exercising its powers
and for all other purposes, but a smaller number may adjourn from time to time until a
quorum is obtained. When a quorum is in attendance, action may be taken by the Board

of Commissioners upon a vote of a majority of the commissioners_even if a simple

majority constitutes three (3) commissioners, unless otherwise provided. In the event that

the Board of Commissioners has less—than-five (5) or fewer Commissioners appointed,
then three (3) Commissioners shall constitute a quorum.

Section 5.  Alternate Chair. In the event a quorum of the Board of

Commissioners is present for a meeting, but both the Chair and Vice Chair are absent, the

2570458v1 / 18621.0001 6
104



DRAFT

5/21/20
commissioners present shall select from among themselves a commissioner to preside for
that meeting.

e Section 6.  Absenteeism. Commissioner attendance shall be consistent with
Section 2.68 of the Fresno County Ordinance Code or as amended by the Fresno County

Board of Supervisors.

Section 7. Resolutions. All resolutions shall be in writing and shall be entered
in a journal of the proceedings of the Board of Commissioners.

Section 8.  Manner of Voting. All questions coming before the Board of

Commissioners shall be determined by voice vote, and the yeas and nays shall be entered
upon the minutes of such meeting.

Section 9.  Brown Act Compliance. All Authority activities, including meetings

and communications, shall be in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government

Code section 54950 et seq., as amended).

ARTICLE IV — COMMISSIONER ACTIVITIES

Section 1.  Powers. The Authority shall have all powers granted pursuant to the

law including the California Housing Authorities Act (Health and Safety section 34200 et

seq.) and Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.

Section 2. Fiduciary Obligation. The Board of Commissioners and its officers

shall have the fiduciary obligation to take actions in the best interests of the Authority. A

commissioner shall disclose and recuse himself or herself from voting on or influencing

2570458v1 /18621.0001 7
105



DRAFT

5/21/20

any business where the commissioner has a conflict or is not able or willing to take

actions in the best interests of the Authority.

Section 3.  Ethics Requirements. Commissioners shall provide to the clerk of

the Board of Commission sufficient proof of participation in qualified AB1234 ethics and

AB1825 sexual harassment trainings once every two vyears, and comply with all other

requirements applicable to them under California law. The Authority's General Counsel

shall facilitate Commissioner trainings. Additionally, commissioners shall annually

complete and submit a Statement of Economic Disclosure (Form 700) disclosing their

economic interests.

Section 49. Indemnity of Board Members. The Authority shall indemnify and

hold a commissioner harmless against any lawsuit or threat of lawsuit arising out of or
resulting from acts of thesaid commissioner which are performed within the scope of his
or her duties as a commissioner; including